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PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

General
Franklin Electric Co., Inc. is an Indiana corposatiounded in 1944 and incorporated in 1946. Exedygre the context otherwise requires,
“Franklin Electric” or the “Company,” shall refes Franklin Electric Co., Inc. and its consolidasedbsidiaries.

The Company, together with its subsidiaries, desigmanufactures and distributes water and fuel fgngystems, composed primarily of
submersible motors, pumps, electronic controlsratated parts and equipment. The Company's busooesssts of two reporting segments
based on the principal end market served: the Watstems segment and the Fueling Systems segnfenCdmpany includes unallocated
corporate expenses in an “Other” segment that hegetith the Water Systems and Fueling Systems setgyrepresent the Company.

The Company's products are sold worldwide. The Gomis products are sold by its employee sales famdeéndependent manufacturing
representatives. The Company offers normal andmasty trade terms to its customers, no signifigemt of which is of an extended nature.
Special inventory requirements are not necessad/castomer merchandise return rights do not exeydnd normal warranty provisions.

The market for the Company's products is highly petitive and includes diversified accounts by simd type. The Company's Water
Systems and Fueling Systems products and relatedragnt are sold to specialty distributors and sonwginal equipment manufacturers
(“OEMSs"), as well as industrial and petroleum eguént distributors and major oil and utility compesi

Business Segments and Produ
Segment and geographic information appears in NetéSegment and Geographic Information,” to thesmdidated financial statements.

Water Systems Segment

Water Systems is a global leader in the produdiwh marketing of water pumping systems and isfanieal leader in submersible motors,
pumps, drives, electronic controls, and monitodegices. The Water Systems segment designs, maméaand sells motors, pumps,
electronic controls and related parts and equipmemtarily for use in groundwater, wastewater, &nel transfer applications.

Water Systems motors and pumps are used princifmllyumping fresh water and wastewater in a viadétresidential, agricultural, and
industrial applications. Water Systems also martufas electronic drives and controls for the motaingch control functionality and provide
protection from various hazards, such as electrigess, over-heating, or dry wells or tanks.

The Water Systems business has grown from a darrsegiimersible motor manufacturer to a global mantufar of systems and components
for the movement of water and automotive fuels.hghts of the Water Systems business transformatiom its origins to the present, are
as follows:

* 1950s Domestic submersible motor manufact

e 1990s Global manufacturer of submersible motors, eledtrdnives and controls selling to pump OE
» 2004 -Began to change the business model to include pamgpsell directly to wholesale distribut

* 2006 -Added adjacent pumping systems, acquired LittlenGamp Compar

» 2007 -Expanded globally, acquired Pump Brands (Pty) LeahitSouth Afric

e 2008 -Continued global expansion, acquired Industriam8icter SA, Braz

e 2009 -International acquisition, Vertical, S.p.A., It

During the second quarter of 2011, Franklin Elecigquired eighty percent of the outstanding shaefrémpo Motor Pompa Sanayi ve Ticaret
A.S. ("Impo") of Izmir, Turkey. Impo is the leadirsgipplier of groundwater pumping equipment in Tyriad has sales of approximately
$28.0 million per year. The Impo acquisition, cormdd with the Company's current presence in th@regirovides Franklin Electric with a
leading position in the rapidly growing market fppundwater pumping systems throughout the Mid@ist Bt also provides a low cost
manufacturing base for supplying the region.




Water Systems products are sold in highly competitharkets. Water Systems competes in each afrigeted markets based on product
design, quality of products and services, perforreaavailability, and price. The Company's printigganpetitors in the specialty water
products industry are Grundfos Management A/S,derhc., and Xylem, Inc. (formerly part of theTCorporation).

2011 Water Systems research and development expersdivere primarily related to the following adies:

e Pumping system for extracting natural gas from seam
e Solar powered groundwater pumping sys

* Improved efficiency effluent and sewage pump prodine
* New and improved wastewater product offe

e Submersible motor technola

* Reduced diameterifich submersible pump li

Fueling Systems Segment

Fueling Systems is a global leader in the prodactiod marketing of fuel pumping systems, fuel ciomt@nt systems, and monitoring and
control systems. The Fueling Systems segment desiganufactures and sells pumps, pipe, sumpsgittivapor recovery components,
electronic controls, monitoring devices and relgiads and equipment primarily for use in subméedibeling system applications.

Fueling Systems has expanded its product offetimgsigh internal development and acquisitions. Hgts of the Fueling Systems history
are as follows:

e 1990s -Domestic manufacturer of submersible turbine pumgiystem

e 2000 - Acquired Advanced Polymer Technology,,laananufacturer of underground pipe for fuelipglecations, and EBW, Inc., a
manufacturer and distributor of fueling hardwarenponents

e 2006 -Acquired Healy Systems, Inc., a manufacturer ofifigenozzles and vapor recovery syst

e 2010 - Acquired PetroTechnik Limited, a Uniteshggdom distributor that designs and sources flexiid lightweight underground

pipe

Fueling Systems products are sold in highly contipetmarkets. Fueling Systems competes in eacts ¢digeted markets based on product
design, quality of products and services, perforreaavailability, and price. The Company's printiggampetitors in the petroleum equipm:
industry are Danaher Corporation and Dover Corpmmat

2011 Fueling Systems research and development éitpeas were primarily related to the following iaites:

» Expansion of the product offering with productsigesd specifically for use with biofuels such a$E&d biodies:
» Development of a new FMS tank gauge, TS 550 EVOi*%ewlution in tank gauge monitori

» Development of the Gemini™ fusion welded secondantainment syste

» Expansion of the capability of the Incon Optiari® circuit breaker monitor to include SF6 Gas Monitg

» Development of a vapor recovery nozzle for the paem and Asian marki

Research and Developme
The Company incurred research and development sgmnfollows:

(In millions) 2011 2010 2009
Research and development expense $ 82 § 75 $ 6.¢

Expenses incurred were for activities related eodbvelopment of new products, improvement of eggproducts and manufacturing
methods, and other applied research and development

The Company owns a number of patents, trademark@mnses. In the aggregate, these patents anatefrial importance to the operatior
the business; however, the Company believes thapitrations are not dependent on any single pateyroup of patents.
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Raw Materials

The principal raw materials used in the manufactidne Company’s products are coil and bar ssteinless steel, copper wire, and
aluminum ingot. Major components are capacitorgomprotectors, forgings, gray iron castings andrigs. Most of these raw materials are
available from multiple sources in the United Staaad world markets. In the opinion of managemamsingle supply source is critical to the
Company’s business. Availability of fuel and eneigyadequate to satisfy current and projected diveparations unless interrupted by
government direction or allocation.

Employees
The Company employed approximately 3,800 persotiseatnd of 2011 .

Major Customers
No single customer accounted for over 10 percenebbales in 2011, 2010, or 2009. No single custancounted for over 10 percent
gross accounts receivable in 2011 or 2010.

Backlog
The dollar amount of backlog by segment was asvidl

February 14, February 18,

(In millions) 2012 2011

Water Systems $ 46.5 3 41.€
Fueling Systems 6.C 10.€
Consolidated $ 52t § 52.5

The backlog is composed of written orders at pramjgstable on a price-at-the-timesifipment basis for products, primarily standarédilca
items. All backlog orders are expected to be fillefiscal 2012. The Company’s sales in the fipgarter are generally less than its sales in
other quarters due to generally lower construcgictivity during that period in the northern hemispgh Beyond that, there is no seasonal
pattern to the backlog and the backlog has notgrde be a significant indicator of future sales.

Environmental Matters

The Company believes that it is in compliance aittapplicable federal, state and local laws comicgy the discharge of material into the
environment, or otherwise relating to the protattid the environment. The Company has not expegigany material costs in connection
with environmental compliance, and, subject todiselosure in Iltem 3 - Legal Proceedings, doedrbéve that such compliance will have
any material effect upon the financial positiorsuiés of operations, cash flows, or competitiveitpas of the Company.

Available Information

The Company’s website addressvisw.franklin-electric.com The Company makes available free of charge dhrough its website its
annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports omi0-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and all anmeedts to those reports, as soon as
reasonably practicable after such material is maatally filed with or furnished to the Securitiaed Exchange Commission. Additionally,
the Company’s website includes the Company’s ceeagovernance guidelines, its Board committeetetsarand the Company’s code of
business conduct and ethics. Information contaorethe Company’s website is not part of this anmepbrt on Form 10-K.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

The following describes the principal risks affagtthe Company and its business. Additional raks uncertainties, not presently known to
the Company or currently deemed immaterial, coelgatively impact the Company’s results of operationfinancial condition in the future.

The Company’s acquisition strategy entails expenseéggration risks, and other risks that could affethe Company’s earnings and
financial condition. One of the Company’s continuing strategies is twaase revenues and expand market share througisitiogs that
will provide complementary Water and Fueling Systgaroducts, add to the Company's global reachethr. bThe Company spends
significant time and effort expanding existing mesises through identifying, pursuing, completimgl mtegrating acquisitions, which
generate expense whether or not the acquisiti@naaually completed. Competition for acquisiti@mdidates may limit the number of
opportunities and may result in higher acquisition




prices. There is uncertainty related to succelysfidquiring, integrating and profitably managirdgdional businesses without substantial
costs, delays or other problems. There can alswl@ssurance that acquired companies will achiewenues, profitability or cash flows that
justify the investment in them. Failure to managenitigate these risks could adversely affectGoenpan’s results of operations and
financial condition.

The Company’s products are sold in highly compeftitimarkets, by numerous competitors whose actiamgda negatively impact sales
volume, pricing and profitability. The Company is a global leader in the productiod marketing of groundwater and fuel pumping
systems. End user demand, distribution relatiggsshindustry consolidation, new product capabditié the Company’s competitors or new
competitors, and many other factors contribute laghly competitive environment. Additionally, serof the Company’s competitors have
substantially greater financial resources thartbmpany. Although the Company believes that ctersty of product quality, timeliness of
delivery, service, and continued product innovatemwell as price, are principal factors considdrg customers in selecting suppliers,
competitive factors previously described may leadeclines in sales or in the prices of all the @any’s products which could have an
adverse impact on its results of operations arahfiral condition.

Reduced housing starts adversely affect demandtiier Compan’s products, thereby reducing revenues and earningdemand for certai
Company products is affected by housing startsnti@oation of the decline in housing starts over lést few years or a continuation or
deepening of the general slowdown in the UnitedeStar other economies in the international marketsCompany serves could reduce
demand and adversely impact gross margins andtoggerasults.

Increases in the prices of raw materials, compongrinished goods and other commodities could adedy affect operations The
Company purchases most of the raw materials f@raducts on the open market and relies on thirtigsafor the sourcing of certain finished
goods. Accordingly, the cost of its products mayalffected by changes in the market price of raternas, sourced components, or finished
goods. The Company and its suppliers also usealaas and electricity in manufacturing productd aatural gas and electricity prices h
historically been volatile. The Company does reriayally engage in commaodity hedging for raw matsrand energy. Significant increases
in the prices of commaodities, sourced componemishfed goods, energy or other commaodities coulsegroduct prices to increase, which
may reduce demand for products or make the Compamg susceptible to competition. Furthermorehadvent the Company is unable to
pass along increases in operating costs to it®usts, margins and profitability may be adverséfigcied.

The Company is exposed to political, economic ariteo risks that arise from operating a multinatiohmdusiness. The Company has
significant operations outside the United Statesluding Europe, South Africa, Brazil, Mexico antiga. Further, the Company obtains raw
materials and finished goods from foreign suppliekscordingly, the Company’s business is subjedidilitical, economic, and other risks
that are inherent in operating a multinational bass. These risks include, but are not limitedhe following:

< Difficulty in enforcing agreements and collectiregeivables through foreign legal systi

e Trade protection measures and import or exporhéitey requiremen

* Inability to obtain raw materials and finished gead a timely manner from foreign suppli

* Imposition of tariffs, exchange controls or othestriction:

» Difficulty in staffing and managing widespread ogigsns and the application of foreign labor regolad
e Compliance with foreign laws and regulati

e Changes in general economic and political conditioncountries where the Company opet

Additionally, the Company operations outside the United States could bativedy impacted by changes in treaties, agreemepntiies an
laws implemented by the United States.

If the Company does not anticipate and effectivenage these risks, these factors may have a alatdvierse impact on its international
operations or on the business as a whole.

Transferring operations of the Company to lower ¢@sgions may not result in the intended cost batef The Company is continuing its
rationalization of manufacturing capacity betwe#mxisting manufacturing facilities and the marattaing complexes in lower cost regions
such as Mexico, the Czech Republic and China.mdement this strategy, the Company must completdransfer of assets and intellectual
property between operations. Each of these tregfeolves the risk of disruption to the Companyianufacturing capability, supply chain
and, ultimately, to the Company’s ability to see/mustomers and generate revenues and profits.
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The Company has significant investments in foreigntities and has significant sales and purchaseganeign denominated currencies
creating exposure to foreign currency exchange réiectuations. The Company has significant investments outsideéJiited States,
including Europe, South Africa, Brazil, Mexico a@tiina. Further, the Company has sales and makehgses of raw materials and finished
goods in foreign denominated currencies. Accotlglinthe Company has exposure to fluctuations ieifpr currency exchange rates relative
to the U.S. dollar. Foreign currency exchange niateis mitigated through several means: mainteaanf local production facilities in the
markets served, invoicing of customers in the sammeency as the source of the products, promgessdht of inter-company balances
utilizing a global netting system and limited usdaveign currency denominated debt. To the extieat these mitigating strategies are not
successful, foreign currency rate fluctuations lcave a material adverse impact on its internatioparations or on the business as a whole.

Delays in introducing new products or the inabilitp achieve or maintain market acceptance with exig or new products may cause tl
Company’s revenues to decreasdhe industries to which the Company belongs hegacterized by intense competition, changes in end
user requirements, and evolving product offerinys iatroductions. The Company believes future sssavill depend, in part, on the ability
to anticipate and adapt to these factors and affes timely basis, products that meet customeratelsy Failure to successfully develop new
and innovative products or to enhance existing ypetxicould result in the loss of existing customersompetitors or the inability to attract
new business, either of which may adversely atfeztCompany’s revenues.

Certain Company products are subject to regulatiand government performance requirements in addititmthe warranties provided by
the Company. The Company’s product lines have expanded sagmifly and certain products are subject to govemmegulations and
standards for manufacture, assembly, and perforen@mnaddition to the warranties provided by the @any. The Company'’s failure to meet
all such standards or perform in accordance withramties could result in significant warranty opa@ costs, lost sales and profits, damac
the Company’s reputation, fines or penalties framegnmental organizations, and increased litigatigposure. The claims made by the
California Air Resources Board and certain localdgtricts in California, described in Item 3-Légaoceedings, are examples of the issues
and litigation that can arise under these lawsragdlations. Changes to these regulations or atdsdnay require the Company to modify
business objectives and incur additional cost®topty, and any liabilities or penalties actuallgunred could have a material adverse effect
on the Company's earnings and operating results.

The growth of municipal water systems and increaggr/ernment restrictions on groundwater pumping dduweduce demand for private
water wells and the Company’s products, therebyueidg revenues and earnings.Demand for certain Company products is affected by
rural communities shifting from private and indival water well systems to city or municipal watgstems. Many economic and other
factors outside the Company'’s control, includingl€é@l and State regulations on water quality, texlits and incentives, could adversely
impact the demand for private and individual watetls. A decline in private and individual waterlixgy/stems in the United States or other
economies in the international markets the Compamnyes could reduce demand for the Company’s ptedun adversely impact sales,
gross margins and operating results.

Demand for Fueling Systems products is impactedelmyironmental legislation which may cause significgfluctuations in costs ant
revenues after meeting compliance requirementg&nvironmental legislation related to air quabiyd fueling containment may create
demand for certain Fueling Systems products whiaktrbe supplied in a relatively short time framen@et the governmental mandate, as
occurred in California in the 2007 - 2009 time pdri During periods of increased demand the Coniparyenues and profitability could
increase significantly, although the Company cao &k at risk of not having capacity to meet den@mnzbst overruns due to inefficiencies
during ramp up to the higher production levelsteAthe Company’s customers have met the compliesmgrements, the Company’s
revenues and profitability may decrease signifilyaas the demand for certain products declinestanbially. The risk of not reducing
production costs in relation to the decreased denaad reduced revenues could have a material adirepact on gross margins and the
Company's results of operations.

Changes in tax legislation regarding our foreign mangs could materially affect our future resultsSince the Company operates in diffel
countries and is subject to taxation in differemtgdictions, the Company’s future effective tatesacould be impacted by changes in such
countries’ tax laws or their interpretations. Bdthmestic and international tax laws are subjechenge as a result of changes in fiscal
policy, changes in legislation, evolution of regida and court rulings. The application of thesme laws and related regulations is subject to
legal and factual interpretation, judgment and wadety. Changes to the U.S. international taxda@euld limit U.S. deductions for expenses
related to un-repatriated foreign-source incomerandify the U.S. foreign tax credit and “check-th@x” rules. The Company cannot pre«
whether any proposed changes in U.S. tax lawsb@iktnacted into law or what, if any, changes mamaeée to any such proposals prior to
their being enacted into law. If the U.S. tax lahange in a manner that increases the Company&blagation, it could have a
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material adverse impact on the Company’s resultpefations and financial condition.

The Company has significant goodwill and intangibéessets and future impairment of the value of thessets may adversely affect
operating results and financial conditionThe Company's total assets reflect substantiahgilde assets, primarily goodwill. Goodwill rest
from the Company's acquisitions, representing #oess of the purchase price paid over the fairevafithe net assets acquired. Goodwill and
indefinite-lived intangible assets are tested atiypdar impairment during the fourth quarter orwaarranted by triggering events. If future
operating performance at one or more of the Compamperating segments were to decline significamglpw current levels, the Company
could incur a non-cash charge to operating earrfiomgan impairment. Any future determination requgrthe recognition of an impairment of
a significant portion of the Company's goodwillimtangible assets could have a material adversadtmmn the Company's results of
operations and financial condition.

The Company's business may be adversely affectetthégeasonality of sales and weather conditionse Company experiences seasonal
demand in a number of markets within the Water&ygstsegment. End-user demand in primary markdtsvi®lwarm weather trends and is
at seasonal highs from April to August in the NerthHemisphere. Demand for residential and agricalliwater systems are also affected by
weather-related disasters including heavy floodind drought. Changes in these patterns could ratkroand for the Company's products
and adversely impact sales, gross margins, andipgresults.

Additional Risks to the CompanThe Company is subject to various risks in the rarrourse of business. Exhibit 99.1 sets forthsreskd
other factors that may affect future results, idaolg those identified above, and is incorporateetineby reference.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

The Company maintains its principal executive @$ién Bluffton, Indiana (leased).

Manufacturing plants or primary distribution cestaér the Water Systems segment are located in &liss{ieased), Brazil (owned), Canada
(leased), China (leased), the Czech Republic (oyyri@ermany (owned), Italy (leased), Japan (leadddxico (owned), Republic of
Botswana (leased), South Africa (owned), Turkeyr{ed), and the United States (primarily owned). Hilithe United States, significant
manufacturing and primary distribution facilitie®docated in Little Rock, Arkansas (leased); Oklala City, Oklahoma (owned); and
Wilburton, Oklahoma (owned).

Manufacturing plants or primary distribution cestér the Fueling Systems segment are located ingdfieased), Germany (leased), and the
United States. Within the United States, a sigaift manufacturing facility is located in Madisd¥isconsin (leased).

The Company also maintains leased warehouse fesiiit Bluffton, Indiana; Fresno, California; SamfpFlorida; Winnipeg, Manitoba,
Canada; and Bolton, Ontario, Canada.

In the Company’s opinion, its facilities are sultafor their intended use, adequate for the Comsdmysiness needs, and in good condition.
ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

In August 2010, the California Air Resources Bog@f@ARB”) filed a civil complaint in the Los AngeleSuperior Court against the Company
and Franklin Fueling Systems, Inc. (a wholly-owsetisidiary of the Company). The complaint rel&bes third-party-supplied component
part of the Company's Healy 900 Series nozzle, visipart of the Company's Enhanced Vapor Recof/BlyR”) Systems installed in
California gasoline filling stations. This partdephragm, was the subject of a retrofit during first half of 2008. As the Company
previously reported, in October 2008 CARB issuétbtice of Violation to the Company alleging tha¢ ttircumstances leading to the retrofit
program violated California statutes and regulaiohe Company and CARB worked to resolve theldigm matter without court action,
but were unable to reach agreement.




The claims in the complainimirror those that CARB presented to the ComparthiénNotice of Violation, and include claims thag th
Company negligently and intentionally sold nozziéh a modified diaphragm without required CARBtdfaration. The Company believes
that, throughout the period to which the complagtates, it acted in full cooperation with CARB d@ndhe best interests of CARB's vapor
emissions control program. Although the complageks penalties of at least $25.0 million, it s @ompany's position that there is no
reasonable basis for penalties of this amount.

In addition, as the Company has previously repottesl Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Managetristrict (“SMAQMD”) issued a
Natice of Violation to the Company concerning thapthragm matter in March 2008. Discussions witit iyency about the circumstan
leading to the retrofit in its jurisdiction and thesolution of the agency's concerns did not réswdgjreement, and in November 2010
SMAQMD filed a civil complaint in the Sacramentogguior Court, mirroring the claims brought by CAREh respect to the diaphragm
issue and also alleging violation of SMAQMD ruleSMAQMD's suit asks for at least $5.0 million imadties for the violations claimed in
jurisdiction.

In July 2010, the Company entered into a tollingeagient with the South Coast Air Quality Managenizstrict (“SCAQMD”) and began
discussions with that agency about the circumsttealing to the retrofit in its jurisdiction arftetresolution of the agency's

concerns. Those discussions did not result inesgemt and in December 2010, SCAQMD filed a civihpdaint against the Company in Los
Angeles Superior Court. The complaint allegesatiohs of California statutes and regulations, ksinto the complaint filed by CARB, as
well as violation of SCAQMD rules, and seeks paaslof at least $12.5 million. The SCAQMD comptaloes not allege an intentional
violation of any statute, rule, or regulation. Th&se has now been consolidated with the CARB icdses Angeles Superior Court.

The Company believes that there is no reasonalkie fia the amount of penalties claimed in the SMA®and SCAQMD suits. The
Company has answered the SMAQMD and SCAQMD comigdaas well as the CARB complaint, denying liapilind asserting affirmative
defenses. Discovery in all these cases has comm@meckthe consolidated CARB and SCAQMD cases afestrial on May 7, 2012.

Neither CARB's filing of its suit nor the air digtr suits have any effect on CARB's certificatidrttte Company's EVR System or any ot
products of the Company or its subsidiaries, andesnot interfere with continuing sales. CARB haser decertified the Company's EVR
System and does not propose to do so now.

The Company remains willing to discuss these matiad work toward resolving them. The Company capredict the ultimate outcome of
discussions to resolve these matters or any prowgedith respect to them. Penalties awardedeén@ARB or any air district proceedings or
payments resulting from a settlement of these mgttkepending on the amount, could have a magffizdt on the Company's results of
operations.

On July 31, 2009, Sta-Rite Industries, LLC and Bieninc. filed an action against the Company i thS. District Court for the Northern
District of Ohio, alleging breach of the partieB02 Settlement Agreement and tortious interferavitie contract based on the Company's
pricing of submersible electric products and segkiamages in excess of $10.0 million for each daim The Company has denied liability,
is defending the case vigorously, and has filedunterclaim alleging Sta-Rite and Pentair's braddhe same Settlement Agreement. Both
the Company and Sta-Rite/Pentair filed MotionsSammary Judgment. The judge granted the Comparptismmand dismissed Sta-
Rite/Pentair's claims against it in September 20h&. judge also granted Sta-Rite/Pentair's motos@immary judgment and dismissed the
Company's counterclaim. Sta-Rite/Pentair is appgdlie dismissal of its claims. The Company capnedict the ultimate outcome of this
litigation, and any settlement or adjudicationti§tmatter, depending on the amount, could havatanial effect on the Company's results of
operations.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
None.
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Current executive officers of the Company, thegsagurrent position, and business experience glatifeast the past five years as of
December 31, 2011 , are as follows:

Period
Holding
Name Age Position Held Position
R. Scott Trumbull 63 Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief Exa®uOfficer 2003 - present
Gregg C. Sengstack 53 President and Chief Opgréxfficer 2011 - present
Senior Vice President and President, Fueling atetnational Water Group 2005 - 2011
Robert J. Stone 47 Senior Vice President anddenets Americas Water Systems Group 2007 - present
Daniel J. Crose 63 Vice President, Global Water Product Supply 2011 - present
Vice President, Water Supply 2010 - 2011
Vice President and Director, North American Operai 2003 - 2010
DelLancey W. Davis 46 Vice President and Presjd¢gfCanada Business Unit 2011 - present
Vice President and President, US/Canada Commd3uiihess Unit 2010 - 2011
Vice President and Director of Americas W&gstems 2008 - 2010
Vice President and Director of Sales, Western Heh@ge Water Systems 2005 - 2008
John J. Haines 48 Vice President, Chief Finar@féiter, and Secretary 2008 - present

Thomas J. Strupp

Steven W. Aikman

Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer, HSBGto Finance, a provide12004 - 2008
of consumer automobile financing

58 Vice President, Global HuResources 2010 - present

Vice President, Franklin Electric and Presidenth&oner and Specialty Market2009 - 2010
Business Unit

Vice President, Franklin Electric and Presigd&ater Transfer Systems 2008 - 2009
Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, Secretayd President Water Transfe 2005 - 2008
Systems

52 Vice President, Global W&gstems Engineering 2010 - present

Chief Engineer — Fuel Handling Products, Delphigooation, a global supplier 2003 - 2010
for the automotive, computing, communications, ggeand consumer
accessories markets

All executive officers are elected annually by Bward of Directors at the Board meeting held injenation with the annual meeting of
shareowners. All executive officers hold officeilititeir successors are duly elected or until thleiath, resignation, or removal by the Board.
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELA TED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS, AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

The number of shareowners of record as of Febriar2012 was 1,024 . The Company's stock is tradettie NASDAQ Global Select
Market under the symbol FELE.

Dividends paid and the price range per common simapioted by the NASDAQ Global Select Market fot 2 and 2010 were as follows:

Dividends per Share Price per Share
2011 2010 2011 2010
Low High Low High
1st Quarter $ A13C  $ A28 $ 38.6z $ 46.8¢ $ 249 % 30.9¢
2nd Quarter A3k .13C 40.7¢ 48.27 27.0¢ 36.5¢
3rd Quarter 13t .13C 32.8: 51.1¢ 27.62 34.4(
4th Quarter A3t .13C 34.1C 52.1¢ 32.4: 41.7¢

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securiti¢
The Company did not purchase, under the Compatogk sepurchase program, any shares of its comioahk sluring the three montlender
December 31, 2011 .

Stock Performance Grap
The following graph compares the Company's cumudattal stockholder return (Common Stock pricerapiation plus dividends, on a
reinvested basis) over the last five fiscal yeaith the Palisades U.S. Water Index and the Ru266I0 Index.

\ +Franklin Electric #Palisades U.S. Water Index &Russell 2000 \
130
110 -
90 +
70 ~
50 : —
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£

Hypothetical $100 invested on December 29, 20@&amklin Electric common stock, Palisades U.S. Whtdex, and Russell 2000 Index,
assuming reinvestment of dividends.

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
FELE $ 10C $ 76 $ 56 $ 57 $ 78 % 88
Palisades U.S. Water 10C 12C 83 96 10¢ 96
Russell 2000 10C 98 65 83 10t 101
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected financial data should bedrgaconjunction with the Company’s consolidatathficial statements. The information set

forth below is not necessarily indicative of futungerations.

Five Year Financial Summary (a)

(In thousands, except per share amounts and ratios) 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
(b) (©) (d) (e) (®
Operations:
Net sales $ 821077 $ 713,79: $ 62599 $ 745627 $ 602,02
Gross profit 272,30! 230,19° 183,55! 226,62: 173,02°
Interest expense 10,50z 9,692 9,54¢ 10,96¢ 8,141
Income tax expense 23,41 15,057 10,62¢ 22,82: 15,51¢
Net income attributable to Franklin Electric Ca¢l 63,09¢ 38,91« 23,24* 43,91 28,81
Depreciation and amortization 25,29t 24,04( 25,38t 24,16« 20,35¢
Capital expenditures 21,144 12,77¢ 13,88¢ 26,86( 28,79
Balance sheet:
Working capital (g) $ 276,38« $ 269,790 $ 237,14¢ $ 247,68 $ 230,47(
Property, plant, and equipment, net 146,40¢ 143,07¢ 147 ,17: 144 53! 134,93:
Total assets 829,53( 788,55¢ 726,99 705,49 673,87
Long-term debt 150,00( 151,24! 151,24: 185,52¢ 151,28°
Shareowners’ equity 448,13! 426,49: 396,87 360,37" 390,18
Other data:
Net income attributable to Franklin Electric Ca¢,
to sales 7.7% 5.5% 3.7% 5.9% 4.8%
Net income attributable to Franklin Electric Ca¢l,
to average total assets 7.8% 5.1% 3.2% 6.4% 4.8%
Current ratio (h) 3.2 3.5 3.8 4.C 3.5
Number of common shares outstanding 23,33¢ 23,257 23,12¢ 23,01¢ 23,09:
Per share:
Market price range
High $ 52.1¢  $ 41.7¢ % 345 $ 5458 $ 52.5¢
Low $ 328 % 249  $ 1712 % 23.7¢  $ 36.01
Net income attributable to Franklin Electric Ca¢.,
per weighted average common share $ 271  $ 1.6¢ % 1.01 % 191 $ 1.2
Net income attributable to Franklin Electric Co.,
Inc., per weighted average common share, assuming
dilution $ 265 % 165 % 1.0C % 18¢ % 1.2
Book value (i) 18.92 18.1¢ 17.0< 15.51 16.62
Dividends per common share $ 054 $ 05z $ 05C $ 05C $ 0.47

(a) Prior year presentation has been adjustedrtply with the retrospective application of the Guamy's inventory accounting principle

change since its adoption on January 2, 2011.

(b) Includes the results of operations of the Canyfs 80% owned subsidiary, Impo Motor Pompa Saveyjiicaret A.S., since its
acquisition in the second quarter of 2011, and 100%e wholly owned subsidiary, Vertical S.p.Ance the Company's acquisition of

the remaining 25% in the fourth quarter of 2011.

(c) Includes the results of operations of the Canys wholly owned subsidiary, PetroTechnik Limitsthce its acquisition in the third

quarter of 2010.

(d) Includes the results of operations of the Canys 75% owned subsidiary, Vertical S.p.A., siitsecquisition in the first quarter of

20009.
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(e) Includes the results of operations of the Camyfs wholly owned subsidiaries, Industrias ScheelBlA and Western Pump LLC, since
their acquisitions in the first and second quanfe2008, respectively.

(H Includes the results of operations of the Camps wholly owned subsidiaries, Pump Brands (Ptyjited and the pump division of
Monarch Industries Limited, since their acquisiian the second and third quarter of 2007, respalgti

(g) Working capital = Current assets minus currentiliiids.

(h) Current ratio = Current assets divided by currettilities.

(i) Book value = Shareownersguity divided by weighted average common shasesjraing full dilution

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The Company changed the accounting principle bylhivalues certain inventory from the last-imsfiout ("LIFO") method to the first-in,
first-out ("FIFO") method and has adjusted the pyiear inventory balances to reflect the changs.aAesult of the retrospective application
of this change in accounting principle, certairafinial statement line items in the Company's cadastd balance sheet as of January 1, 2
and its consolidated statements of income andrsaits of cash flows for the years ended Janua2@11 and January 2, 2010, were adjut

2011 vs. 2010
OVERVIEW

Sales and earnings in 2011 were up from last y&he sales increase was related to the Compargssitions, as well as sales volume and
price increases and the impact of foreign currerenyslation. The Company's consolidated grosstpras $272.3 million for 2011, an
increase of $42.1 million or about 18 percent fr2810. The gross profit as a percent of net sal@eased 100 basis points to 33.2 percent in
2011 from 32.2 percent in 2010. The gross profitgimimprovement was due to leveraging fixed casthigher sales and lower labor and
burden cost, partially offset by higher materiastso

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Net Sales

Net sales in 2011 were $821.1 million, an increzs&107.3 million or 15 percent compared to 201@saf $713.8 million. The incremen
impact of sales from acquired businesses was $4Bi8n or about 6 percent. Sales revenue increé&ye$18.8 million or about 3 percent in
2011 due to foreign currency translation. The salhemige in 2011, excluding acquisitions and foreigmency translation, was an increase of
$45.2 million or about 6 percent.

(In millions) 2011 2010 2011 v 2010
Net Sales

Water Systems $ 654.1 $ 583.2 $ 70.¢

Fueling Systems 167.( 130.5 36.5

Consolidated $ 821.1 $ 713.¢ $ 107.3

During the fourth quarter 2011, a long term subiibégsnotor supply agreement with a major fuelingipqent competitor expired and was
not renewed. Over the past several years sales thidagreement have represented about 1 pertém €ompany's consolidated sales and
these sales have been reflected in the Water Systegment.

Net Sale-Water Systems

Water Systems sales were $654.1 million in 201inarease of $70.8 million or 12 percent versus®2he incremental impact of sales fr
acquired businesses was $18.9 million or aboutr@emé. Foreign currency translation rate changeeased sales $17.8 million, or about 3
percent, compared to sales in 2010. The sales ehar2P11, excluding acquisitions and foreign cucketranslation, was an increase of $2
million or about 6 percent.

Water Systems sales in the U.S. and Canada weper8@nt of consolidated sales and grew by 9 pemmnpared to 2010. Leading the
Company's growth in the U.S. and Canada were sal@smping systems for industrial and irrigatiorpbgations, which increased sales by
about 28 percent during 2011. The combination ghiltrop prices, which have led to more discretipreapital for farmers, along with dry
conditions in portions of the Southwest and Midwhas resulted in strong demand for agriculturédation products. Sales of pumping
systems for residential and light commercial andtesater applications in the U.S. and Canada gseabbut 8 percent compared to the
year as the Company continued to ¢
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share in this market. The 8 percent increase iledah increase in submersible motor sales undesugiEly agreement mentioned above.

Water Systems sales in EMENA, which is Europe Miiddle East, and North Africa, were 15 percent @figolidated sales and grew by 29
percent compared to the prior year. Acquisitiomted sales during 2011 were about $19 million. &diclg acquisitions, EMENA sales grew
by about 10 percent during 2011. EMENA sales haasnbmpacted by the political and financial undatyathroughout the region.

Water Systems sales in Latin America were aboytet8ent of consolidated sales for 2011 and grewdyercent compared to the prior ye
Sales continued to be strong in Brazil, Mexico, &rgina and Chile with sales increases in thes@mnsgit about 16 percent.

Water Systems sales in the Asia Pacific region Wavercent of consolidated sales and grew by 1@péicompared to the prior year. Sale
China continued to grow, increasing about 25 pdarfrem the prior year. The year-on-year sales iasegl 19 percent in the Southeast Asian
region. Australia, one of the largest regions,éased at a slower growth rate of 6 percent.

Water Systems sales in Southern Africa represethjmetcent of consolidated sales and declined gr@gmt compared to the prior year.
Heavy rains and flooding in South Africa's farmtteaid reduced large pump sales in African exporketa resulted in lower agricultural and
industrial pump and motor sales this year.

Net Sale-Fueling Systems

Fueling Systems sales were $167.0 million in 201d iacreased $36.5 million or about 28 percent f&@h0. The incremental impact of se
from acquired businesses was $24.4 million or al®ytercent. Foreign currency translation ratergka increased sales $1.0 million, or less
than 1 percent, compared to sales in 2010. The shknge in 2011, excluding acquisitions and foreigrrency translation, was an increas
$11.1 million or about 9 percent.

Fueling Systems achieved solid organic sales gRinsiping systems sales grew by 15 percent duritig 26 station owners worldwide
continue their conversion from suction to pressumaping technology for dispensing gasoline. Pip# @ntainment sales grew by 16
percent, excluding the Petrotechnik acquisitior layp 70 percent including the acquisition.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales as a percent of net sales for 204 2@h0 was 66.8 percent and 67.8 percent, respicti@orrespondingly, the gross profit
margin increased to 33.2 percent from 32.2 pereeh@0 basis point improvement. The gross profitgimamprovement was due to
leveraging fixed costs on higher sales, lower labat burden costs, partially offset by higher mat&osts. Direct materials as a percentage
of sales increased by 150 basis points comparkdtyear. The Company's consolidated gross prafit $272.3 million for 2011, up $42.1
million from 2010.

Selling, General and Administrative'SG&A”)

Selling, general, and administrative (SG&A) expansere $177.3 million in 2011 and increased by $h6illion or about 10 percent in 2011
compared to last year. During 2010, Fueling Systatisred $4.3 million in SG&A expenses for varidagal matters. Also in 2010, SG&A
was reduced by a $1.2 million gain on the sal@pnélland building in South Africa. In 2011, increaseSG&A attributable to acquisitions
were $8.3 million. Additional increases in SG&A toduring 2011 resulted from information technol¢gy") related expenditures for
acquisition integrations, higher research, develemimand engineering ("RD&E") expenses, and ine@a®ssts for marketing and selling-
related expenses. There were also additional Fu&lystems legal matters expenses in 2011 of $0lipmi

Restructuring Expense

Restructuring expenses for 2011 were $1.6 millioth @®duced diluted earnings per share by approri;n&0.05. Restructuring expenses in
2011 included $1.1 million in Phase lll costs priityarelated to the closing of the Siloam Springsifity and $0.5 million in costs related to
Phase IV of the Global Manufacturing RealignmemigPam announced in the second quarter of 2011 riRésting expenses in 2011
included asset write-down, severance cost and raatwrfng equipment relocation costs.

In total, the Company had previously estimatedctbet for Phase Ill to be between $10.0 million &&d.8 million. The Company actually
incurred $12.9 million in Phase Il expenses, fidacember 2008 through the third quarter of 201 pprAximately $9.1 million of the $12.9
million was for non-cash items.
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The Company has estimated the pretax charge fareRNato be between $2.6 million and $5.2 milliofiwhich $1.2 million to $3.5 million
is for closing the Oklahoma City manufacturing figi The charges began in the second quarter 1 2td will substantially end in the
fourth quarter 2012 and include severance, per@idailments, asset write-offs, and equipment @ioo. The Company incurred $0.5
million in Phase IV, none of which was related tmfcash items.

Restructuring expenses in 2010 were $5.3 millicth rzniuced diluted earnings per share by approxign@fel5. Restructuring expenses last
year included asset wr-down expenses, severance expenses, pensionmenaiind manufacturing equipment relocation castsapily
related to the closing of the Siloam Springs fagili

Operating Income
Operating income was $93.4 million in 2011, up #28illion from $64.0 million in 2010.

(In millions) 2011 2010 2011 v 2010
As Adjusted
(Note 3)
Operating income (loss)
Water Systems $ 105 $ 84.C $ 21.c
Fueling Systems 31.: 17.4 13.¢
Other (43.2) (379 (5.9
Consolidated $ 934 $ 64.C $ 29.4

There were specific items in 2011 and 2010 thatictgd operating income that were not operationahimre. 2011 included $1.6 million of
restructuring charges and $0.7 million for cerfaiyal matters. In 2010 there were three such itenpse-tax expense of $5.3 million in
restructuring charges; $4.3 million of expensescfatain legal matters; and a reduction in SG&& b2 million in expenses from the gain on
sale of land and building in South Africa.

The Company refers to these items as “non-GAAPsljents” for purposes of presenting the non-GAARricial measures of operating
income after non-GAAP adjustments and percent dipgrancome to net sales after non-GAAP adjustmantset sales (operating income
margin after non-GAAP adjustments). The Compadigbes this information helps investors understanderlying trends in the Company's
business more easily. The differences betweerr thas-GAAP financial measures and the most compaGAAP measures are reconciled
in the following tables:

16




Operating Income and Margins
Before and After Non-GAAP Adjustments

(in millions) For the Full Year of 2011

Water Fueling Corporate  Consolidated
Reported Operating Income $ 105.2 $ 3Lz $ (43.29) $ 93.2
% Operating Income To Net Sales 16.1% 18.7% 11.0%

Non-GAAP Adjustments:

Restructuring $ 15 % 01 $ — 3 1
Legal matters $ — 3 0.7 $ — $
Gain on sale of land and building $ — 3 — $ — $ =
Operating Income after Non-GAAP Adjustments $ 106.¢ $ 321 % (432 % 95.7
% Operating Income to Net Sales after Non-GAAP
Adjustments (Operating Income Margin after Non-GAAI
Adjustments) 16.2% 19.2% 11.7%
For the Full Year of 2010

Water Fueling Corporate  Consolidated
Reported Operating Income $ 84.C $ 174 % 374 % 64.(
% Operating Income To Net Sales 14.4% 13.52% 9.C%
Non-GAAP Adjustments:
Restructuring $ S & — $ — 3 £
Legal matters $ — 8 423 % — $ 2
Gain on sale of land and building $ 1.2 $ — 8 — $ (1.2
Operating Income after Non-GAAP Adjustments $ 88.1 $ 217 % (379 % 72.4
% Operating Income to Net Sales after Non-GAAP
Adjustments (Operating Income Margin after Non-GAAI
Adjustments) 15.1% 16.€% 10.1%

Operating Income-Water Systems

Water Systems operating income, after non-GAAPsdjants, was $106.8 million in 2011, an increas2lgpercent versus 2010. The 2011
operating income margin after non-GAAP adjustmerds 16.3 percent and increased by 120 basis pmnipared to 2010. This increased
profitability was the result of operating leveragereases in pricing, and productivity improvensent

Operating Income-Fueling Systems

Fueling Systems operating income after non-GAARstdients was $32.1 million in 2011 compared to B2dillion after non-GAAP
adjustments in 2010, an increase of 48 percent20ié& operating income margin after non-GAAP adgsits was 19.2 percent and
increased by 260 basis points compared to thedgdent of net sales in 2010.

Operating Income-Other
Operating income-other is composed primarily ofliacated general and administrative expenses. @eaed administrative expenses were
higher due to IT expenses and higher RD&E spending.

Interest Expense
Interest expense for 2011 and 2010 was $10.5 miflied $9.7 million, respectively.

Other Income or Expense

Other income or expense was a gain of $5.7 millic®@011 and a loss of $0.3 million in 2010. Inaddn other income in 2011 was income
from equity investments of $2.3 million and intérieeome of $2.6 million, primarily derived frometinvestment of cash balances in short-
term securities. In conjunction with the Impo aaifion, the Company entered into a forward purcttasgract for Turkish lira for a portion
the estimated acquisition price. The contract sgstanding as of the end of the first quarter@if2and resulted in a ptax gain included i
other income of approximately $0.6 million.
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Included in other income/(expense) in 2010 wasnmedrom equity investments of $1.0 million and et income of $1.5 million, primarily
derived from the investment of cash balances imtgkon securities. Other income or expense in 24140 included the reversal of
indemnification receivables related to contingentltabilities for $2.9 million related to an acsition in a prior year. The adjustment for the
reversal of the uncertain tax position did not hameémpact on net income. The uncertain tax pwsitvas originally recorded as a receivable
from the sellers pursuant to the terms of the paselagreement. The receivable and the tax liabdiated to the uncertain tax position were
reversed in 2010 as the statutory limit for audlithe tax return expired. Excluding the reverdahe uncertain tax position, “other income or
expense” in 2010 would have been about $2.6 milligome.

Foreign Exchange
Foreign currency-based transactions produced dd02911 of $1.4 million, primarily due to the kish lira. Foreign currency-based
transactions produced a gain in 2010 of $1.0 mmilrimarily due to the Canadian dollar and SouftticAn rand.

Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes in 2011 and 2010 $2&4 million and $15.1 million, respectively. Ttax rate for 2011 was 26.9 percent,
however, excluding the impact of discrete evengstéix rate was 27.2 percent. The projected taxwdt continue to be lower than the
statutory rate primarily due to the indefinite r@stment of foreign earnings taxed at rates bel@Mt. S. statutory rate as well as recognition
of foreign tax credits. The Company has the ahittindefinitely reinvest these foreign earningséd on the earnings and cash projectiol
its other operations as well as cash on hand aaithhle credit. The tax rate for 2010 was 27.4 getchowever, excluding the impact of
discrete events the tax rate was 30.2 percent.

Net Income

Net income for 2011 was $63.7 million compared@i@net income of $39.9 million. Net income atitdble to Franklin Electric Co., In
for 2011 was $63.1 million, or $2.65 per dilute@dush compared to 2010 net income attributable aoldin Electric Co., Inc. of $38.9 million
or $1.65 per diluted share.

2010 vs. 2009
OVERVIEW

Sales and earnings for 2010 were up from 2009. 2@l increased 14 percent compared to 2009aade®010 diluted earnings per share
increased 65 percent. Earnings for the year inecepemarily due to the increased revenue and égreg of fixed manufacturing costs on-
higher sales. The Company generated $94.6 milliarash from operations during 2010 compared to $lt#lion in 2009 and ended 2010
with about $140 million of cash and equivalents paned to about $87 million at year-end 2009. Inegntvas $140.2 million at year end
2010, $8.5 million or 6 percent less than at year 2009. In September of 2010, Franklin Fuelingt&ys acquired all of the outstanding
stock of PetroTechnik Limited for about $12.9 naifli The Company purchased approximately $6.9 millio about 226 thousand shares, of
Company stock pursuant to its authorized stockn@yase program during 2010. The Company had ndamdatisig balance on its revolving
debt agreement at year-end 2010 or 2009.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Net Sales
(In millions) 2010 2009 2010 v 2009
Net Sales
Water Systems $ 583.2 $ 504.6 $ 78.t
Fueling Systems 130.t 121.2 9.3
Consolidated $ 713.¢ $ 626.( $ 87.¢

Net sales for 2010 were $713.8 million, an increas®87.8 million or about 14 percent compared@02sales of $626.0 million. Sal
revenue increased by $11.7 million or about 2 perce2010 due to foreign exchange. The incrementphct of sales from businesses
acquired during 2010 was $11.3 million. The salemnge for 2010, excluding acquisitions and foregohange, was an increase of $64.8
million or about 10 percent.
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Net Sale-Water Systems

Water Systems sales worldwide were $583.3 millign$78.5 million or about 16 percent for 2010 coregato 2009. Water Systems
revenues represent about 80 percent of the Congngl sales. All of the Water Systems sales dgnawds organic. Changes in selling price
increased net sales by $13.0 million or about Briggnt. Sales revenue increased by $12.2 milliabout 2 percent in 2010 due to foreign
currency translation.

Water Systems sales in the U.S. and Canada repagsaum half of global Water Systems sales and dngd/7 percent in 2010 versus 200¢
the U.S. and Canada, sales of groundwater pumpstgras for residential applications increased luaB2 percent as a result of market
share gains. Sales of large groundwater pumpingmsssfor industrial and agricultural applicationghie U.S. and Canadian market grew by
about 15 percent during the year, and appear poiberily from farm spending despite relatively wetather in several important agricultt
regions of the U.S. Internationally, Water Systesai®s in the developing markets of Latin Americsig®Pacific and Southern Africa,
represented about 33 percent of total Water Syssates and increased by 23 percent in 2010 ve¥& Sales in Europe, Middle East and
North Africa grew by about 5 perce!

In response to rising commodity costs.g., aluminum, copper and steel), the Company impleetemarket price increases for all of the
Water Systems businesses globally. The price isesedid not apply to all sales and varied by maakdtproduct but generally averaged
between 3 and 5 percent.

Net Sale-Fueling Systems

Fueling Systems sales worldwide were $130.5 millamincrease of $9.3 million or about 8 percen2@l0 compared to 2009. Fueling
Systems revenues represent about 20 percent Gfoiimpany's total revenues. Sales from businessesradqluring 2010 were $11.3 million
or 9 percent of total sales. Excluding the acgoisjt2010 sales were $119.2 million a decline afidl? percent. Changes in selling price
increased net sales by $2.4 million or about 2g#rSales revenue decreased by $0.5 million if® 20E to foreign currency translation.

Fueling Systems sales in the U.S. and Canadayfelbbut $11 million. The decline was caused entibgl reduced sales of the Company's
vapor recovery products in the State of Califoraiaeduction of 61 percent compared to the priar ye about $16 million in sales revenue in
2010 compared to the prior year. 2010 Fueling $ysteales in the U.S and Canada outside of Caldarew by about 9 percent. The first
quarter 2010 was the last quarter which includgdiicant sales in California to meet that statefgulatory mandates. Fueling Systems sales
in international markets increased by about 30grerduring 2010 primarily due to continued demasrdvBipor control systems in China.
Fueling Systems implemented price increases farton of its global products averaging approxinhatepercent to offset raw material cc
inflation.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales as a percent of net sales for 20d@@09 was 67.8 percent and 70.7 percent, respicti@orrespondingly, the gross profit
margin was 32.2 percent for 2010 compared to 288gmt for 2009. The Company's gross profit wa&2sillion, an increase of $46.6
million from the $183.6 million in 2009. The grosfit margin improvement was primarily due to leaging fixed costs on lower fixed cost
spending and higher sales. The second largest waprent in gross profit was a result of reducedadil@bor and burden costs due to the
consolidation of portions of North American manuéaimng into the factory complex in Linares, Mexidhe benefit from earnings attributa
to acquisitions was about $3.2 million.

Selling, General and Administrative'SG&A")

Selling, general, and administrative (“SG&A”) exges increased by $27.2 million or about 20 perite2010 compared to 2009. The
Petrotechnik acquisition added $3.1 million of SG&#penses to the Fueling Systems segment in 2@RAExpense as a percent of net
sales for 2010 and 2009 was 22.5 percent and 2tcgmt, respectively. The increase in SG&A expensesprimarily a result of higher sales
commissions and expenses related to performanestizasnpensation of $12.7 million. Other increaseSG&A included $7.4 million for
various legal matters primarily recognized in theelihg Systems segment. During the second quabted,Zueling Systems incurred $3.8
million in SG&A expenses for various legal mattefaeling Systems incurred an additional $1.4 millid SG&A expense principally for
legal fees related to these matters. The expersalt from an agreement with a key competitor tbesaumerous patent, licensing and fair
trade disputes; claims by both the California A@sBurces Board and individual air districts in ttate relating to components of Fueling
Systems' Vapor Recovery Systems products, and oldiers involving litigation with James Healy, whold Healy Systems to the Company
in 2006, regarding payments from an escrow fundemrd-out fees under the purchase agreement. geftdie amounts incurred in these
matters, which are subject to indemnification pstis in the Healy purchase agreement, were naresgal and were also at issue in the
Healy litigation. During the fourth quarter 201Betongoing litigation between Fueling Systems amdes Healy was adjudicated in Federal
court and as a result Fueling Systems incurredgelsanf $0.5 million in SG&A expenses. The Healigétion was fully resolved by
agreement of the parties in 2011. Additionallyeash, development and engineering expendituresased in 2010 by $0.8 million.

19




Restructuring Expense

There were $5.3 million of restructuring expense2010 compared to $6.2 million in 2009. Restrunyexpenses include asset impairme
severance expenses, pension charges and manufgaqguipment relocation costs. The majority osthexpenses were related to the
previously announced Phase Il of the Company'$&@IManufacturing Realignment Program which priyarelated to the consolidation of
the Siloam Springs, Arkansas facility with the Lies, Mexico operation. In 2010, there were additioastructuring expenses of about $1.9
million that were related to acquisitions and ottestructuring consistent with the goals of the @any's Global Manufacturing Realignment
Program.

As of the end of 2010, Phase Ill was consideredptet®. In total, the Company had previously estaddhe cost for Phase Il to be between
$10.0 million and $12.8 million. The Company acly@icurred $11.8 million in Phase Il expensesnfrDecember 2008 through the third
quarter of 2010. Approximately $8.2 million of t&1.8 million was for non-cash items.

Operating Income
Operating income was $64.0 million in 2010, up $28illion or 46 percent from 2009 operating incoof&43.7 million.

(In millions) 2010 2009 2010 v 2009
As Adjusted  As Adjusted
(Note 3) (Note 3)
Operating income (loss)
Water Systems $ 84.C $ 55.¢ $ 28.1
Fueling Systems 17.4 20.¢ (3.5
Other (37.9) (33.]) 4.3
Consolidated $ 64.C $ 437 $ 20.c

Operating Income-Water Systems
Water Systems operating income was $84.0 millior2@l0, up $28.1 million or about 50 percent ver2089. Operating margins were up 30
percent at 14.4 percent of sales in 2010 versusgdercent in 2009. Operating margins improved prilynas a result of higher sales volume.

Operating Income-Fueling Systems
Fueling Systems operating income was $17.4 milllodecrease of $3.5 million or about 17 percersugef009. Operating margins were 1
percent of sales versus 17.2 percent in 2009. ky&lystems operating income declined primarily essalt of higher legal expenses.

Operating Income-Other
Operating income-other is composed primarily ofliacated general and administrative expenses. @eapd administrative expense
increases were primarily due to higher performarased compensation expenses.

Interest Expens

Interest expense for 2010 and 2009 was $9.7 midizoh$9.5 million, respectively. Interest expenseotstanding debt in 2010 was lower,
due primarily to decreases in debt, and was offge&i0.7 million of interest settlements awardedHsy court in the Healy matter described
above.

Other Income or Expense

Other income or expense for 2010 was a loss of ®lll®n and was not significant for 2009. Includiedother income/ (expense) for 2010
and 2009 was interest income of $1.5 million and $iillion, respectively, primarily derived frometfinvestment of cash balances in short-
term U.S. treasury and agency securities. Alsduded in other income in 2010 and 2009 was incame fequity investments of $1.0 millic
and $0.1 million, respectively. In 2010 and 200®e0 expenses included the reversal of indemnifinateceivables related to contingent tax
liabilities for $2.9 million and $1.5 million, resptively.

Foreign Exchange
Foreign currency-based transactions for 2010 af® 2&re gains of $1.0 million and $0.5 million,pestively. The gains in 2010 were
primarily due to foreign currency translation gaimshe Canadian dollar and South African ranchiat.S. dollar.
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Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes in 2010 and 2009 $&& 1 million and $10.6 million, respectively. Téective tax rates for 2010 and 2009
were 27.4 and 30.7 percent, respectively. The éffetax rate differs from the United States statytrate of 35 percent, generally due to
foreign income exclusion and due to the effectstafe and foreign income taxes, net of federabemnefits. The Company recorded
adjustments in 2010 for uncertain tax positionatie to acquisitions occurring prior to 2010 fdnieh indemnification was provided for in
the respective purchase agreements and the reeétbal indemnification asset was recorded in “©theome/(expense)” in the Company's
statements of income, a benefit of $2.9 milliond adjustments to the state deferred tax ratesalderhestic restructuring, a benefit of $1.6
million. The Company further recorded a valuatiiovaance of $3.4 million against certain state def@ tax assets as restructuring both
domestically and internationally has reduced taxalalrnings in the U.S. and the realization of #ferled tax assets cannot be projected with
a reasonable amount of certainty. The full yeai02&ffective tax rate from operations was about @Zent, higher than the actual tax rat
27.4 percent, excluding the impact of the rever$aincertain tax positions, adjustments for doneestthite taxes, and other noperational ta:
adjustments during 2010.

Net Income

Net income for 2010 was $39.9 million compared®@02net income of $24.0 million. Net income atttdhle to Franklin Electric Co., In

for 2010 was $38.9 million, or $1.65 per dilutedush compared to 2009 net income attributable aoldin Electric Co., Inc. of $23.2 million
or $1.00 per diluted share.

CAPITAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

The Company's primary sources of liquidity are caisthand, cash flows from operations and fundslavia under its committed, unsecured,
revolving credit agreement maturing on DecembeR046 (the “Agreement”) in the amount of $150.0liwrl, and its amended and restated
uncommitted note purchase and private shelf agreeftie “Prudential Agreement”) in the amount 0082 million, with $150.0 million of
notes issued thereunder beginning to mature in.ZDM& Company recently renewed the Agreement witlmereased borrowing capacity ¢
also an increased allowable leverage ratio, but wtiherwise similar terms and conditions that i#ld market conditions at the time of
renewal. To achieve consistency with the increadlesvable leverage ratio under the renewed Agreé¢ntiem Company simultaneously
amended the comparable provision of the PrudeAtigdement. The Company has no scheduled princgpahpnts under the Prudential
Agreement until 2015 at which time it amortizes Soyears at an amount of $30.0 million per yearoABecember 31, 2011, the Company
had $147.0 million borrowing capacity under the dgment as $3.0 million in letters of credit weréstanding, and $50.0 million borrowing
capacity under the Prudential Agreement.

The Agreement contains customary affirmative arghtiee covenants. The affirmative covenants incliimincial statements, notices of
material events, conduct of business, inspectiqgra@berty, maintenance of insurance, complianch iaitvs and most favored lender
obligations. The affirmative covenants also inclfidancial covenants with a maximum leverage rafi8.50 to 1.00 and an interest coverage
ratio equal to or greater than 3.00 to 1.00. Thgatiee covenants include limitations on loans oraates, investments, and the granting of
liens by the Company or its subsidiaries, as wepmhibitions on certain consolidations, mergsases and transfers of assets. As of
December 31, 2011, the Company was in compliantteallicovenants.

Recent volatility in the financial and credit matkbéas generally not adversely impacted the ligyiofi the Company and the Company
expects that ongoing requirements for operatiomgital expenditures, pension obligations, dividerasl debt service will be adequately
funded from cash on hand, operations, and existiadit agreements.

The Company has announced preliminary plans toteaisa new Global Corporate Headquarters and Eeging Center of Excellence on
property it has acquired in the Fort Wayne, Indjanatropolitan area. The approximately 110,00Gsgoot building is expected to be
completed by mid2013. Preliminary estimates for the land acquisiind improvement and building construction casithout giving effec
to any economic development incentives, are irrdnge of approximately $32.0 to $36.0 million.

Regarding liquidity, at December 31, 2011, the Canyphad $153.3 million of cash on hand at variogations worldwide. Approximately
half of the cash on hand was in the U.S. and readitessible. On a regular basis the Company revieernational cash balances and, if
appropriate based on forecasted expenditures argidewations for the post-tax economic efficiengil, reposition cash among its global
entities. Cash investments worldwide are investetaing to a written policy and are generally ank demand accounts and bank time
deposits with the preservation of principal asttlghest priority. Also, historically the Companyshgenerally sourced inputs and sold outputs
both in the local currency of operations on a couby country basis, thereby insulating local chatances from currency volatility.
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Net cash flows from operating activities were $9@ilion for 2011 compared to $94.6 million in 2046d $112.6 million in 2009. Ni

income was up significantly over 2010 primarily doghe sales increase. Cash provided in 2010 wasgly a result of emphasis on
reducing inventories, offset by higher accountenreable due to increased sales. The operatingft@ashin 2009 was primarily a result of
lower accounts receivable, due to lower sales hadiming of customer payments, reduced inventpassnanagement focused on reducing
inventory levels due to economic and business tiomdi including the reduced year over year saled the timing of tax payments in 2009.
Income taxes were a source of cash in 2009 asatggnts were decreased in 2009, consistent witih&std payment requirements.
Operationally, the Company generally experiencleiglaer working capital investment in the second timidl quarter of each year as a result
of stronger seasonal activity in the building, egltural, and other industries in the northern tegghere. To the extent the Company
potentially grows further in the southern hemisghéhis historical pattern may moderate.

Net cash used in investing activities was $65.8anilfor 2011 compared to $24.2 million in 2010 &#8.7 million in 2009. The primal
increases in investing activities were relateddguasitions and capital spending. During 2011 tlkenany purchased an 80 percent intere
Impo for $25.1 million, net of cash acquired. Thguaisition was funded with cash on hand. The Comdso purchased the remaining
outstanding 25 percent interest of Vertical S.fok$7.1 million cash paid. Additionally, $21.8 fioh was spent on property, plant and
equipment including the purchase of land for the @dobal Corporate Headquarters and EngineeringeCef Excellence and a new
communications system. During 2010 the CompanyisedjiPetroTechnik Limited for $11.8 million, netcdsh acquired. The acquisition
was funded with cash on hand. Additionally, $13ilfiom was used for property, plant and equipmeddigons in 2010. During 2009 the
Company acquired 75 percent of Vertical S.p.A$96.8 million, net of acquired cash. The acquisitizas funded with cash on hand.
Additionally, $12.0 million was used for properptant and equipment additions in 2009. In recestiony, capital expenditures have been
approximately $15.0 to $25.0 million per annum. Twmpany expects 2012 and 2013 amounts to be etkpaimarily due to the Global
Corporate Headquarters and Engineering Center oélience project. The Company has available to atiractive source of project related
financing that it may choose to use to partialhafice this project. Regarding rationale and styaftimgpotential future acquisitions that imp
cash from investing, generally speaking the Compamews opportunities with an emphasis on incraagiobal distribution and also with
an emphasis on complementary product lines thabeasffectively marketed through existing globatdbution.

Net cash used in financing activities was $15.8ionilin 2011 compared to $14.5 million in 2010 &#¥.3 million in 2009. During 2011 tt
Company completed the repurchase of approximat&y0®0 shares of the Company's common stock fo6$hdlion pursuant to the
Company's stock repurchase program. Dividendsarathount of $12.9 million were paid to shareholdefsvhich $0.4 million were paid to
minority shareholders. During 2010 the Company detep the purchase of approximately 226,500 stafrfee Company's common stock
for $6.9 million. Dividends in the amount of $12x@llion were paid to shareholders. In 2009, thehaased in financing activities was
primarily related to debt repayments, net of debtpeds, and dividends of $11.9 million paid torghalders. At least annually the dividend
policy is reviewed, and the Company attempts talpagse shares annually to offset dilution of egawyards, but market conditions may
prompt a perceived more efficient alternate useash. The Company in recent history has not loo&éke public capital markets for
financing, and under current circumstances the Gmyploes not foresee a need to do so in the neaefu

Effective for 2012, the Company redesigned centaiinement plan offerings. The redesign was comeplét order to increase standardization
of retirement plans among U.S. salaried employads@reduce the expected cash funding volatilityetirement plans, while at the same
time keeping in place a competitive retirement pi&rring to attract and retain talent. The Compacakieved this by freezing both the Basic
Pension Plan and the Cash Balance Plan as of Jahu2012, with the exception of a certain limitagnber of Basic Pension Plan
participants who will still accrue benefits oveliraited sunset period. Also effective January 112he Cash Balance Plan was closed (the
Basic Pension Plan was previously closed). As ntidey 1, 2012, the Company instituted a new setvased contribution, supplemental to
the existing Company match for employees, intodisfined contribution retirement plan offering.
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AGGREGATE CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

The majority of the Company’s contractual obligatdo third parties relate to debt obligationsadidlition, the Company has certain
contractual obligations for future lease paymetasitingency payments, and purchase obligations palgement schedule for these contractual
obligations is as follows:

(In millions) Less than More than
Total 1 Year 1-3Years 3-5Years 5 Years

Debt $ 163.7 $ 137 $ — 9 60.C $ 90.C
Debt interest 48.t 9.4 17.4 13.€ 7.8
Capital leases 0.3 0.3 — — —
Operating leases 19.1 7.3 7.€ 2.C 2.2
Contingent consideration 5.C — 5.C — —
Purchase obligations 23.€ 22.: 1.3 — —

$ 260.z $ 53.C $ 31.: % 75.¢ % 100.(

The calculated interest was based on the fixedofa®e79 percent for the Company’s $150.0 milliond-term insurance company debt, six
month Euro Interbank Offered Rate (“Euribor”) pluse percent paid on subsidiary debt of €0.2 miJli&h2 million at then current exchange
rates, maturing in 2012, and $13.5 million of sdizly debt with interest rates ranging from 3% % @ith maturity dates ending in 2012.

The Impo Motor Pompa Sanayi ve Ticaret A.S. stasicpase agreement provided for additional contihgagments resulting from an earn-
out provision if certain performance criteria aohiaved in any year from 2011 to 2013.

Purchase obligations include commitments primddfythe purchase of machinery and equipment, aildibg expansions.

The Company has pension and other post-retirenerefiy obligations not included in the table abaarech will result in future payments of
$7.9 million in 2012. The Company also has unrecsyl tax benefits, none of which are includechmtable above. The unrecognized tax
benefits of approximately $5.6 million have beetoreled as liabilities and the Company is uncemaito if or when such amounts may be
settled. Related to the unrecognized tax bendfiesCompany has also recorded a liability for ptig penalties and interest of $0.5 million.

ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In December 2011, the Financial Accounting Stansl&uiard ("FASB") issued Accounting Standards Upd&t&uU™) 2011-12
Comprehensive Incomé&he new guidance indefinitely defers certain priovis of ASU 2011-5tatement of Comprehensive Incaied
required companies to present reclassificationstfjants for each component of accumulated othepreimensive income in both net inco
and the statement in which other comprehensiveniiecis presented. The deferral does not changeritin@ny provisions of ASU 2011-5, as
described below. ASU 2011-12 shares the same efedates as ASU 2011-5 and will impact the finahstatement presentation of the
Company in the first quarter 2012. As the ASU adsles only disclosure requirements, adoption of 8U112 is not expected to impact 1
Company's financial position, results of operationsash flows.

In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU 20TEe&ing Goodwill for ImpairmentThe new guidance gives companies the option of
performing a qualitative assessment before calogjahe fair value of the reporting unit. If thestéts of the qualitative assessment conclude
that the fair value of the reporting unit is makely than not less than the applicable carryingpam, the two-step impairment test would be
required. Otherwise, further testing would not eguired. ASU 2011-8 is effective for annual aneiimh goodwill impairment tests
performed for fiscal years beginning after Decenitier2011, with early adoption permitted. As thel A&ldresses only the assessment of
impairment, adoption of ASU 2011-8 is not expedtetnpact the Company's financial position, resafteperations or cash flows.

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU 201%tatement of Comprehensive Incarfiée new statement gives companies the optiomesgmtin
net income and comprehensive income in one conimstatement of comprehensive income or in tworsé@aut consecutive statements.
Currently companies report other comprehensivemeand its components in stockholders' equity. 2BW1-5 is effective for fiscal years,
and interim periods within those years, beginnifigrdDecember 15, 2011 and will impact the finahstatement presentation of the Comg
in the first quarter 2012. As the ASU addressegy difclosure requirements, adoption of ASU 2Gli$-not expected to impact the Compa
financial position,
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results of operations or cash flows.

In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU 201 F4dir Value Measurement and Disclosur&he new guidance requires additional disclostoes
Level 3 measurements including quantitative infdfaraabout the significant unobservable inputs usesktimating fair value, a discussion
of the sensitivity of the measurement to thesetmpand a description of the Company's valuati@tgss. ASU 2011-4 is effective for fiscal
years, and interim periods within those years, fr@gg after December 15, 2011. As the ASU addresslysdisclosure requiremen
adoption of ASU 2011-4 is not expected to impaet@ompany's financial position, results of operaior cash flows.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Management’s discussion and analysis of its fir@rmndition and results of operations are basea tipe Company’s consolidated financial
statements, which have been prepared in accordeititaccounting principles generally accepted i thnited States of America. The
preparation of these financial statements requir@sagement to make estimates and judgments tleat #fie reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses, and the retiismibsure of contingent assets and liabilitislanagement evaluates its estimates on an on-
going basis. Estimates are based on historicaréqce and on other assumptions that are beli@vied reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis for making joggnts about the carrying value of assets and ili@sithat are not readily apparent from
other sources. Actual results may differ from thesemates under different assumptions or conditiofhere were no material changes to
estimates in 2011.

The Company'’s critical accounting estimates aratifled below:

Allowance for Uncollectible Accoun

Accounts receivable is comprised of balances dwa frustomers net of estimated allowances for uectiile accounts. In determining
allowances, historical collection experience, cotteends, aging of accounts receivable, and pericédit evaluations of customers’
financial condition are analyzed to arrive at appiate allowances. Allowance levels change as custespecific circumstances and the other
analysis areas previously noted change. Basedment knowledge, the Company does not believeetlsea reasonable likelihood that there
will be a material change in the estimates or aggioms used to determine the allowance.

Inventory Valuatior

The Company uses certain estimates and judgmengdue inventory. Inventory is recorded at the lowkcost or market. The Company
reviews its inventories for excess or obsolete petglor components. Based on an analysis of hislarsage, management’s evaluation of
estimated future demand, market conditions andraitive uses for possible excess or obsolete matsying values are adjusted. The
carrying value is reduced regularly to reflect dge and current anticipated product demand. Ifahckemand differs from the estimates,
additional reductions would be necessary in theodesuch determination is made. Excess and olesimieéntory is periodically disposed of
through sale to third parties, scrapping, or otheans.

Business Combinatiot

The Company follows the guidance under FASB AccimgnEtandards Codification ("ASC") Topic 8@isiness CombinationsThe
acquisition purchase price is allocated to thetassmjuired and liabilities assumed based upon thgpective fair values. The Company s
report in its financial statements provisional amisifor the items for which accounting is incomeletGoodwill is adjusted for any change
provisional amounts made within the measuremenogerThe Company utilizes management estimatesariddependent third-party
valuation firm to assist in determining the faitues of assets acquired and liabilities assumetth 8stimates and valuations require the
Company to make significant assumptions, inclugirgjections of future events and operating perfartea The Company has not made any
material changes to the method of valuing fair galaf assets acquired and liabilities assumed glthia last three years.

Redeemable Noncontrolling Intert

The Company held two redeemable noncontrolling@stes during 2011. The noncontrolling interestsewercorded at fair value as of the
respective acquisition dates. The noncontrollingriest holders have the option to require the Camparedeem their ownership interests in
the future with cash. The redemption value willdegived using a specified formula based on an egsninultiple adjusted by the net debt
position, subject to a redemption floor value attilme of redemption. Impairment assessments aferpeed on a quarterly basis. The
Company made redemption value adjustments of $0lidmin 2011. As a result, an adjustment to thenéngs per share computation was
necessary. Redemption value adjustments were netdared material in 2010.
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Trade Names and Goodwill

According to FASB ASC Topic 35Mtangibles — Goodwill and Othelintangible assets with indefinite lives must bstéd for impairment i
least annually or more frequently as warrantediggeéring events that indicate potential impairmenhe Company uses a variety of
methodologies in conducting impairment assessneclisding income approaches that utilize discourdash flow models, which the
Company believes are consistent with hypotheticaket data. For indefinite-lived assets apart fgpadwill, primarily trade names for the
Company, if the fair value is less than the cagyamount, an impairment charge is recognized iamaount equal to that excess. The
Company has not made any material changes to thedhef evaluating impairments during the lastéhyears. Based on current knowle:
the Company does not believe there is a reasofikblidood that there will be a material changdhie estimates or assumptions used to
determine impairment.

In compliance with FASB ASC Topic 350, goodwillrist amortized. Goodwill is tested at the reportimit level for impairment annually or
more frequently as warranted by triggering evelmas indicate potential impairment. Reporting uaits operating segments or one level
below, known as components, which can be aggredatddsting purposes. The Company’s goodwillliscated to the Americas Water
Systems Group, International Water, and Fuelingedys units. As the Company’s business model egatvenagement will continue to
evaluate its reporting units and review the agdiegariteria.

In assessing the recoverability of goodwill, ther@any determines the fair value of its reportingsuby utilizing a combination of both the
market value and income approaches. The marke¢ adproach compares the reporting units' curreshpasjected financial results to
entities of similar size and industry to determiine market value of the reporting unit. The incaperoach utilizes assumptions regarding
estimated future cash flows and other factors terdene the fair value of the respective assetes&ltash flows consider factors regarding
expected future operating income and historicaldse as well as the effects of demand and compretiihe Company may be required to
record an impairment if these assumptions and astisnchange whereby the fair value of the reporimits is below their associated carrying
values. Goodwill included on the balance sheef dseofiscal year ended 2011 was $168.8 million.

During the fourth quarter of 2011, the Company clatgal its annual impairment test of indefinite tiieade names and goodwill and
determined the fair value of all reporting unitsrevgubstantially in excess of the respective rémpunit's carrying value. Significant
judgment is required to determine if an indicatidrimpairment has taken place. Factors to be densd include the following: adver
changes in operating results, decline in strategsiness plans, significantly lower future cashkvBpand sustainable declines in market data
such as market capitalization. A 10 percent deer@athe fair value estimates used in the impaitrtest would not have changed this
determination. The sensitivity analysis requitegl tise of judgment and numerous subjective assangptivhich, if actual experience varies,
could result in material differences in the requiemts for impairment charges. Further, an extenidechturn in the economy may impact
certain components of the operating segments nigméisantly and could result in changes to theragation assumptions and impairment
determination.

Income Taxe

Under the requirements of FASB ASC Topic 7H@ome Taxesthe Company records deferred tax assets anditiedbior the future tax
consequences attributable to differences betweamdial statement carrying amounts of existingtassed liabilities and their respective tax
bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are unedsising enacted tax rates expected to apphxtbte income in the years in which those
temporary differences are expected to be recowaredttled. The Company analyzes the deferredssets and liabilities for their future
realization based on the estimated existence €itmift taxable income. This analysis consideesftilowing sources of taxable income:
prior year taxable income, future reversals oftingstaxable temporary differences, future taxabt®me exclusive of reversing temporary
differences and tax planning strategies that wgelderate taxable income in the relevant periocgufficient taxable income is not projected
then the Company will record a valuation allowaagainst the relevant deferred tax assets. The @oyngperates in multiple tax
jurisdictions with different tax rates, and detamas the allocation of income to each of thesedigi®ns based upon various estimates
assumptions. In the normal course of business timep@ny will undergo tax audits by various tax jdigsions. Such audits often require an
extended period of time to complete and may résuitcome tax adjustments if changes to the allonare required between jurisdictions
with different tax rates. Although the Company hexsorded all probable income tax uncertaintiescooedance with FASB ASC Topic 740,
these accruals represent estimates that are stibjénet inherent uncertainties associated withtdlkeaudit process, and therefore include
uncertainties. Management judgment is requiretktermining the Company’s provision for income taxaeferred tax assets and liabilities,
which, if actual experience varies, could resultniaterial adjustments to deferred tax assets abdifies. The Company’s operations involve
dealing with uncertainties and judgments in theiapfon of complex tax regulations in multiple igdtictions. The final taxes paid are
dependent upon many factors, including negotiatwitis taxing authorities in various jurisdictionsdaresolution of disputes
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arising from federal, state, and internationaldaxits.

The Company has not made any material changeg tméithod of developing the income tax provisiorirduthe last three years. Based on
current knowledge, the Company does not believeetisea reasonable likelihood that there will baaterial change in the estimates or
assumptions used to develop the income tax pravisio

Pension and Employee Benefit Obligatis

With the assistance of the Company’s actuariesgigmount rates used to determine pension andrptistment plan liabilities are calculated
using a yield-curve approach. The yield-curve apphadiscounts each expected cash flow of the iiglsilream at an interest rate based on
high quality corporate bonds. The present valudefdiscounted cash flows is summed and an equivadeighted-average discount rate is
calculated. Market conditions have caused the disic@te to move from 5.25 percent last year t& #&rcent this year for pension plans and
from 5.00 percent last year to 4.50 percent thé& jer postretirement health and life insurancehAnge in the discount rate selected by the
Company of 25 basis points would result in no cleatogemployee benefit expense and a change of &doumillion of liability. The
Company consults with actuaries and investmentsatlsiin making its determination of the expectedjtterm rate of return on plan assets.
Using input from these consultations such as l@mgrtinvestment sector expected returns, the coioetaand standard deviations thereof,
and the plan asset allocation, the Company hasresban expected long-term rate of return on plaetaf 8.00 percent as of yeard 2011
This is the result of stochastic modeling showimg 50" percentile median return at least at or above Bedbent. A change in the long-term
rate of return selected by the Company of 25 hasists would result in a change of about $0.3 mnillof employee benefit expense.

Share-Based Compensation

The fair value of each option award is estimatedhendate of grant using the Black-Scholes opt@ination model with a single approach
and amortized using a straight-line attribution moetover the option’s vesting period. Options gedrtb retirement eligible employees are
immediately expensed. The Company uses historatal th estimate the expected volatility of its ktdhe weighted average expected life;
period of time options granted are expected touistanding; and its dividend yield. The risk-freg¢ess for periods within the contractual life
of the option are based on the U.S. Treasury yetge in effect at the time of the grant. The Camphas not made any material changes to
the method of estimating fair values during thé faee years. Based on current knowledge, thegaomdoes not believe there is a
reasonable likelihood that there will be a matesfe@nge in the estimates or assumptions used tagethe fair value of stock based
compensation.

FACTORS THAT MAY AFFECT FUTURE RESULTS

This annual report on Form 10-K contains certamvérd-looking information, such as statements altio@itCompany’s financial goals,
acquisition strategies, financial expectationsudelg anticipated revenue or expense levels, bssipemospects, market positioning, product
development, manufacturing re-alignment, capitgleexitures, tax benefits and expenses, and thet effeontingencies or changes in
accounting policies. Forward-looking statemenéstgpically identified by words or phrases suchiladieve,” “expect,” “anticipate,”
“intend,” “estimate,” “may increase,” “may fluctugt “plan,” “goal,” “target,” “strategy,” and simélr expressions or future or conditional
verbs such as “may,” “will,” “should,” “would,” anttould.” While the Company believes that the asptions underlying such forward-
looking statements are reasonable based on preseditions, forward-looking statements made byGobenpany involve risks and
uncertainties and are not guarantees of futurepagnce. Actual results may differ materially frémose forward-looking statements as a
result of various factors, including general ecoimand currency conditions, various conditions #peto the Company’s business and
industry, new housing starts, weather conditioresket demand, competitive factors, changes inidigton channels, supply constraints,
effect of price increases, raw material costs,neldygy factors, integration of acquisitions, litiiga, government and regulatory actions, the
Company’s accounting policies, and other risksasltlescribed in Item 1A and Exhibit 99.1 of thisrir 10-K. Any forward-looking
statements included in this Form 10-K are based upformation presently available. The Company dustsassume any obligation to update
any forward-looking information, except as requibsdaw.

”ou ” o ” o ” ow ”
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK

The Company is subject to market risk associatéld evianges in foreign currency exchange ratesrgedeist rates. Foreign currency
exchange rate risk is mitigated through severalnsiemaintenance of local production facilitieshe markets served, invoicing of customers
in the currency which the Company is billed forgwotion inputs, prompt settlement of third partg émter-company balances, limited use of
foreign currency denominated debt, and maintainmingmal foreign currency denominated cash balances.

The results of operations are exposed to changeteirest rates primarily with respect to borrovangder the Company’s revolving credit
agreement (the “Agreement”), where interest rategiad to the prime rate or London Interbank GfteRates (LIBOR). The Company had
zero borrowings for the year 2011 under the Agregm@&he Company also has exposure to changeseairest rates in the form of the fair
value of outstanding fixed rate debt fluctuatingesponse to changing interest rates. The Compa@y ilot, as a matter of policy, enter into
derivative contracts for speculative purposes.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

FRANKLIN ELECTRIC CO., INC. AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(In thousands, except per share amounts) 2011 2010 2009
As Adjusted As Adjusted
(Note 3) (Note 3)

Net sales $ 821,07 $ 713,79. $ 625,99:
Cost of sales 548,77. 483,59! 442,43t
Gross profit 272,30! 230,19° 183,55!
Selling, general, and administrative expenses 177,32 160,86« 133,62¢
Restructuring expense 1,58 5,33¢ 6,19¢
Operating income 93,39¢ 63,99¢ 43,73
Interest expense (10,507) (9,692 (9,549
Other income/(expense) 5,661 (299) (26)
Foreign exchange income/(expense) (1,427 967 451
Income before income taxes 87,13t 54,97¢ 34,60¢
Income taxes 23,41 15,055 10,62
Net income $ 63,72: $ 39,91¢ $ 23,98:
Less: Net income attributable to noncontrollingehests (6249) (1,009 (738
Net income attributable to Franklin Electric Cag $ 63,09¢ $ 38,91 $ 23,24t
Income per share:

Basic $ 271 % 168 $ 1.01

Diluted $ 265 % 168 $ 1.0C
Dividends per common share $ 054 § 05z §$ 0.5¢

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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FRANKLIN ELECTRIC CO., INC. AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands) 2011 2010
As Adjusted
(Note 3)
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 153,33° $ 140,07(
Receivables, less allowances of $2,964 and $284pectively 78,43 70,82¢
Inventories:
Raw material 49,61 51,46¢
Work-in-process 16,041 12,46:
Finished goods 76,03 76,30:
141,69: 140,23:
Deferred income taxes 11,85: 13,18:
Other current assets 15,16¢ 14,781
Total current assets 400,48 379,10(

Property, plant and equipment, at cost:

Land and buildings 85,62 84,72+
Machinery and equipment 186,52! 181,29:
Furniture and fixtures 24,33: 20,92/
Other 13,05¢ 6,32:
309,53 293,26

Less: Allowance for depreciation (163,13() (150,18¢)
146,40¢ 143,07¢

Asset held for sale 1,30(¢ 2,32t
Intangible assets 94,53¢ 89,01:
Goodwill 168,84¢ 165,19:
Other assets 17,95¢ 9,854
Total assets $ 829,53( $ 788,55¢
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LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Income taxes
Current maturities of long-term debt and short-t&arrowings
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt
Deferred income taxes
Employee benefit plans
Other long-term liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (see Note 17)

Redeemable noncontrolling interest

Shareowners' equity:

Common stock (65,000 shares authorized, $.10 pae)autstanding (23,339 and 23,257,

respectively)
Additional capital
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Total shareowners' equity
Noncontrolling interest
Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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2011 2010
As Adjusted
(Note 3)

45,48 $ 39,08¢
58,69: 64,71«
5,94¢ 4,26¢
13,97¢ 1,241
124,09° 109,30°
150,00 151,24!
15,34¢ 17,88’
68,74¢ 65,967
15,49 8,31z
5,407 7,291
2,33: 2,32¢
144,60¢ 129,70!
350,45 313,90!
(49,269 (19,44
448,13! 426,49:
2,30¢ 2,05t
450,43¢ 428,54¢
829,53( $ 788,55¢




FRANKLIN ELECTRIC CO., INC. AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net casidlfrom operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization
Share-based compensation
Deferred income taxes
(Gain)/loss on disposals of plant and equipment
Asset impairment
Foreign exchange expense
Excess tax from share-based payment arrangements
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Receivables
Inventory
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Income taxes
Employee benefit plans
Other
Net cash flows from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Additions to property, plant, and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant, and equipmen
Additions to intangibles
Cash paid for acquisitions, net of cash acquired
Purchase of remaining redeemable noncontrollingesha
Additional consideration for prior acquisition
Loan to customer
Proceeds from loan to customer
Net cash flows from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of debt
Repayment of debt
Proceeds from issuance of common stock
Excess tax from share-based payment arrangements
Purchases of common stock
Dividends paid
Net cash flows from financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash
Net change in cash and equivalents
Cash and equivalents at beginning of period

Cash and equivalents at end of period
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2011 2010 2009
As Adjusted As Adjusted
(Note 3) (Note 3)
63,72: $ 39,91¢ $ 23,98
25,29t 24.,04( 25,38t
3,97(C 4,27: 4,97¢
3,867 9,69¢ (1,549
2,781 (1,632 3,28:
20C 2,42 —
1,42z 967 —
(2,495 (1,327 (144)
(92¢) (3,58¢) 15,96¢
3,92¢ 13,51¢ 48,16¢
6,827 21,37 (6,799
3,30¢ (2,929 7,872
(10,769 (6,745 (1,604
(1,206 (5,385 (6,967)
99,92! 94,61t 112,58!
(21,849 (13,709 (12,039
324 1,76¢ 73
(1,21¢) (439) (5)
(25,149 (11,78Y (16,767
(7,056 — —
(7,765 — —
(3,31¢) — —
26¢ — —
(65,755 (24,169 (28,739
19,84 — 28,00(
(19,91 (1,218 (64,217)
8,91( 5,01t 66€
2,49t 1,321 144
(13,910 (7,242 —
(12,890 (12,339 (11,890
(15,47) (14,45%) (47,29))
(5,428 (2,799 3,38¢
13,26 53,19t 39,94
140,07( 86,87¢ 46,93¢
153,33 $ 140,07¢ $ 86,87¢




Cash paid for income taxes $ 13,84:
Cash paid for interest $ 10,50¢

Non-cash items:

Payable to seller of Impo Motor Pompa Sanayi veritA.S. $ 5,03¢
Payable to seller of Vertical S.p.A. $ 37C
Payable to seller of Healy Systems, Inc. $ =
Payable to seller of Western Pump LLC $ —
Additions to property, plant, and equipment, ndtpad $ 187
Stock option exercises, forfeitures, or stock estients $ —

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

32

@ B

hH H BH B BB

13,90:
9,69:

&8 &H

& P PH B H B

15,657
9,52:

1,58¢
11¢€
1,822
291




FRANKLIN ELECTRIC CO., INC. AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVENCOME/(LOSS)

(In thousands) Accumulated

Common Other Redeemable

Shares Common Additional Retained Comprehensive  Comprehensive Noncontrolling Noncontrolling
Outstanding Stock Capital Earnings Income/(Loss) Income/(Loss) Interest Interest

Balance as of year end
2008 23,01¢ $ 230z $ 113397 $ 282,71 $ (38,03¢) $ 1,17C  $ =
Net income 23,24¢ $ 23,24t 521 217
Currency translation
adjustment 23,797 23,797 69€ 54E

Minimum pension liability
adjustment, net of tax
$2,800 (4,507 (4,507)

Comprehensive income $ 42,54

Dividends on common

stock (11,540

Noncontrolling dividend (350)

Common stock issued 36 3 62t
Share-based compensatic 88 9 4,967

Common stock
repurchased or received for
stock options exercised (14 (D) (259

Adjustment to acquired fa

value 6,631
Tax benefit of stock

options exercised 144

Balance as of year end
2009 23,12¢  $ 2,31  $ 119,137 $ 294,16t $ (18,740 $ 2,031 $ 7,39:¢
Net income 38,91« $ 38,91« 568 43¢

Currency translation
adjustment 72C 72C (270) (541)

Minimum pension liability

adjustment, net of tax $700 (1,422) (1,422)

Comprehensive income $ 38,21z

Dividends on common

stock (11,957

Noncontrolling dividend (377)
Common stock issued 271 28 4,987

Share-based compensatic 97 9 4,26

Common stock
repurchased or received for
stock options exercised (239 (24) (7,219

Adjustment to acquired fa
value

Tax benefit of stock
options exercised 1,321

Balance as of year end
2010 23257 % 2,32¢ $ 129,70 $ 31390¢ $ (19,445 $ 2,058 % 7,291
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Accumulated
Common Other Redeemable
Shares Common Additional  Retained Comprehensive  Comprehensive  Noncontrolling Noncontrolling
Outstanding  Stock Capital Earnings Income/(Loss) Income/(Loss) Interest Interest

Net income 63,09¢ $ 63,09¢ 474 15C

Currency translation

adjustment (21,39) (21,39) 22t (1,129)
Minimum pension

liability adjustment,

net of tax $5,500 (8,739 (8,739

Comprehensive

income $ 32,97

Dividends on
common stock (12,44)

Noncontrolling

dividend (449
Common stock

issued 352 34 8,87t

Share-based
compensation 52 5 3,96t

Common stock

repurchased or

received for stock

options exercised (323) (32) (13,879

Purchase of

remaining

redeemable

noncontrolling

interest 303 (7,655

Adjustment to
Vertical redemption
value (22¢) 22¢

Adjustment to
acquired fair value 6,521

Tax benefit of stock
options exercised 2,06¢

Balance as of year i _
end 2011 23,33¢  $ 2,337 $ 144,60¢ $350,45 $ (49,269 $ 2,30: % 5,407

Prior year presentation has been adjusted to comifiythe retrospective application of a changadnounting principle for inventory (see
Note 3).

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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FRANKLIN ELECTRIC CO., INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Company--“Franklin Electric” or the “Company” shall reféo Franklin Electric Co., Inc. and its consolidasetbsidiaries.

Fiscal Year--The Company's fiscal year ends on the Saturdayese December 31. The financial statements armhguznying notes are as
of and for the years ended December 31, 2011 (®ksyeJanuary 1, 2011 (52 weeks), and Januaryl® &2 weeks), and referred to as
2011, 2010, and 2009 , respectively.

Principles of Consolidatior--The consolidated financial statements includeatt@unts of Franklin Electric Co., Inc. and itesolidated
subsidiaries. All intercompany transactions hagerbeliminated.

Business Combination--The Company allocates the purchase price otisiigitions to the assets acquired, liabilitiesiassd, and non-
controlling interests acquired based upon thepe&esve fair values at the acquisition date. Then@any utilizes management estimates and
inputs from an independent third-party valuatiomfto assist in determining these fair values. &keess of the acquisition price over these
estimated fair values is recorded as goodwill. Gabhds adjusted for any changes to acquisitioredair value amounts made within the
measurement period. Acquisition-related transaatasis are recognized separately from the busgwabination and expensed as incurred.

Revenue Recognitio--Products are shipped utilizing common carriersatito customers or, for consignment productsuiomer specified
warehouse locations. Sales are recognized whe@dhganys products are shipped direct or, in the case mfigpment products, transfer
from the customer specified warehouse locatioiméocustomer, at which time transfer of ownershigh @sk of loss pass to the customer. The
Company records net sales revenues after discatittie time of sale based on specific discountnarog in effect, related historical data,
experience.

Research and Development Exper--The Company’s research and development activdtiesharged to expense in the period incurred. The
Company incurred expenses of approximately $8.2amiln 2011 , $7.5 million in 2010 , and $6.9 riah in 2009 .

Cash and Cash EquivalentsThe Company considers cash on hand, demand depasil highly liquid investments with an origima&turity
date of three months or less to be cash and castadents.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments--The carrying amount of long-term debt was $168illion at December 31, 2011 and $151.8 millain
January 1, 2011 . The estimated fair value ofielit was $179.2 million and $162.0 million at Debem31, 2011 and January 1, 2011,
respectively. The fair value assumed floating dibt was valued at par. In the absence of quatedsoin active markets, considerable
judgment is required in developing estimates af¥alue. Estimates are not necessarily indicatiihie amounts the Company could rea
in a current market transaction. In determining fdir value of its long-term debt, the Companysusstimates based on rates currently
available to the Company for debt with similar teramd remaining maturities. The Company’s off-be¢asheet instruments consist of
operating leases.

Accounts Receivable, Earned Discounts, and Allowarior Uncollectible Account--Accounts receivable are stated at estimated net
realizable value. Accounts receivable are comprigdzhlances due from customers, net of earnedudigs and estimated allowances for
uncollectible accounts. Earned discounts are basegpecific customer agreement terms. In determiallowances for uncollectible
accounts, historical collection experience, curtesnids, aging of accounts receivable, and periodidit evaluations of customers’ financial
condition are reviewed. The Company believesttatllowance is appropriate; however, actual egpee could differ from the original
estimates, requiring adjustments to the reserve.

Inventories--Effective January 2, 2011 , the Company eleabechange its accounting principle of valuing alitsfinventories that used the
LIFO method to the FIFO method (see Note 3).

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or etarkhe majority of the cost of domestic and fongigventories is determined using the FIFO
method with a portion of inventory costs determinsihg the average cost method. The Company revtswsventories for excess or
obsolete products or components based on an asalysistorical usage and management's evaluafiestonated future demand, market
conditions, and alternative uses for possible exoce®bsolete parts.
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Property, Plant, and Equipmer--Property, plant, and equipment are stated at dospreciation of plant and equipment is calcuair a
straight line basis over the estimated useful lve5 to 20 years for land improvements and buddirb to 10 years for machinery and
equipment, and 5 years for furniture and fixtuMaintenance, repairs, and renewals of a minor pate expensed as incurred. Betterments
and major renewals which extend the useful liveadst to the productive capacity of buildings, immnments, and equipment are capitalized.
The Company reviews its property, plant, and eqeipinfor impairment at the asset group level whenevents or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of such assetsmoabe recoverable. The Company’s depreciatigperge was $19.4 million , $19.5

million , and $20.2 million in 2011 , 2010 , and0®0, respectively.

Goodwill and Other Intangible AssetsThe Company tests goodwill for impairment on anwal basis during the fourth quarter or more
frequently as warranted by triggering events thdicate potential impairment. Goodwill is testedheg reporting unit level, which the
company has determined to be the Americas Watde®@gsGroup, International Water, and Fueling Systanits. In compliance with
Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") Acoting Standards Codification ("ASC") Topic 338tangibles - Goodwill and Other
the Company has evaluated the aggregation craedadetermined that the components within the AtasrivVater Systems Group and
International Water reporting units can be aggredjat 2011 .

In assessing the recoverability of goodwill, ther@any determines the fair value of its reportingsuby utilizing a combination of both the
income and market valuation approaches. The in@ppeoach estimates fair value based upon futwentee, expenses, and cash flows
discounted to present value. The market valuatpgraach estimates fair value using market multiplaf various financial measures
compared to a set of comparable public companies.

An indication of impairment exists if the carryimglue of the reporting unit is higher than its fedlue, as determined by the above approach.
The second step of testing as outlined in FASB A®@ic 350 must be performed to measure the amduntpairment loss. The amount of
impairment is determined by comparing the impliaid ¥alue of the reporting unit's goodwill to itarcying value in the same manner as if the
reporting units were being acquired in a businesstination. The Company would allocate the falugao all of the reporting unit's assets
and liabilities, including any unrecognized intarlgiassets, in a hypothetical analysis that woaldutate the implied fair value of

goodwill. The Company would record an impairmemirgie for the difference between the implied faiue of goodwill and the recorded
goodwill.

The Company also tests indefinite lived intang#sets, primarily trade names, for impairment oararual basis during the fourth

quarter. In assessing the recoverability of thddrnames, the Company determines the fair valng aa income approach. The income
approach estimates fair value based upon futuenrex: An indication of impairment exists if thergarg value of the trade names is higher
than the fair value. The Company would record apaiinment charge for the difference.

Amortization is recorded and calculated for othefirdte lived intangible assets on a basis thdects cash flows over the estimated useful
lives. The weighted average number of years ovéclweach intangible class is amortized is 17 y&arpatents, 6 years for supply
agreements, 15 years for technology, 13 - 20 yleaiustomer relationships, 5 years for softwang & years for all others.

Warranty Obligations--Warranty terms are generally two years from déditmanufacture or one year from date of instaltatibhe general
warranty liability is recorded when revenue is gaiaed and is based on actual historical retumsritom the most recent warranty

periods. In 2007 , the Company began offeringxdareled warranty program to certain Water Systamtomers, which provides warranty
coverage up to five years from the date of manufactProvisions for estimated expenses relatedadyet warranty are made at the time
products are sold or when specific warranty isswesdentified. These estimates are established isstorical information about the nature,
frequency, and average cost of warranty claimseapected customer returns. The Company activetlieturends of warranty claims and
takes action to improve product quality and minienizarranty claims. The Company believes that theaméy reserve is appropriate;
however, actual claims incurred could differ frame priginal estimates, requiring adjustments toréiserve.

Income Taxes--Income taxes are accounted for in accordance WABB ASC Topic 740ilncome Taxes Under this guidance, deferred tax
assets and liabilities are determined based oditfezence between the financial statement andsis of assets and liabilities and net
operating loss and credit carry forwards using tthtax rates in effect for the year in which tliffedences are expected to reverse. Value
allowances are established when necessary to reldfiered tax assets to the amounts expectedrgalized. The Company records a
liability for uncertain tax positions by establisia recognition threshold and measurement atérifautrecognition and measurement of a tax
position taken or expected to be taken in a taxmet
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Share-Based Compensatior The Company accounts for compensation costslifshare-based payments based on the grant-dateafae
estimated in accordance with fair value provisions.

Pension--The Company makes its determination for pengiostretirement, and post employment benefit platmlities based on
management estimates and consultation with acgjanieorporating estimates, and assumptions ofdyslan service costs, future interest
costs on projected benefit obligations, rates ofigensation increases, employee turnover rategj@attd mortality rates, expected
investment returns on plan assets, asset allocassumptions of plan assets, and other factors.

Earnings Per Common Shar--Basic and diluted earnings per share are companddlisclosed in accordance with FASB ASC Topig, 26
Earnings Per Shar. Basic earnings per share are computed basedagroimgs available to common shareholders divideithé weighted
average number of common shares outstanding. Dikaenings per share are computed based upon gamanmilable to common
shareholders divided by the weighted average nuamifimsmmon shares outstanding during the periodsaegl for the effect of other dilutive
securities. The Company utilizes the two-class wetio compute earnings available to common shadengl Under the two-class method,
earnings are adjusted by accretion amounts to nealele noncontrolling interests recorded at redemnpialue. The adjustments represent
dividend distributions, in substance, to the nomicdiing interest holder as the holders have catral rights to receive an amount upon
redemption other than the fair value of applicatiares. As a result, earnings are adjusted tactefies in substance distribution that is
different from other common shareholders.

Translation of Foreign Currencies-All assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiari@ functional currency other than the U.S. dadles
translated at year end exchange rates. All revandeexpense accounts are translated at averaganaffect during the respective period.
Adjustments for translating foreign currency asseis liabilities in U.S. dollars are included asomponent of other comprehensive income.
Transaction gains and losses that arise from exgheate fluctuations are included in the resultspdrations in “Foreign exchange income/
(expense)”, as incurred.

Significant Estimates--The preparation of financial statements in comfity with accounting principles generally accepitethe United
States requires management to make significamhatds and assumptions that affect the reported mimofiassets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilitiethatdate of the financial statements and the redaimounts of expenses during the reporting
periods. Significant estimates and assumptions &yagement affect allowance for uncollectible actsunventory valuation, business
combinations, redeemable noncontrolling intereati¢ names and goodwill, income taxes, pensioreamaoyee benefit obligations, and
share-based compensation.

Although the Company regularly assesses theseassmactual results could materially differ. Thmpany bases its estimates on historical
experience and various other assumptions thatiévas to be reasonable under the circumstances.

2. ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In December 2011, the FASB issued ASU 201XzdMprehensive Incom&he new guidance indefinitely defers certain priovis of ASU
2011-5Statement of Comprehensive Incdivet required companies to present reclassificatajastments for each component of
accumulated other comprehensive income in botlnnetme and the statement in which other comprelieriscome is presented. The
deferral does not change the primary provisiomr8®) 2011-5, as described below. ASU 2011-12 shesame effective dates as ASU
2011-5 and will impact the financial statement praation of the Company in the first quarter 2042the ASU addresses only disclosure
requirements, adoption of ASU 2011-12 is not exge¢d impact the Company's financial position, itlssaf operations or cash flows.

In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU 20Tke&ing Goodwill for ImpairmentThe new guidance gives companies the option of
performing a qualitative assessment before calogjahe fair value of the reporting unit. If thestéts of the qualitative assessment conclude
that the fair value of the reporting unit is makely than not less than the applicable carryingpant, the two-step impairment test would be
required. Otherwise, further testing would not eguired. ASU 2011-8 is effective for annual aneiimh goodwill impairment tests
performed for fiscal years beginning after Decenilier2011, with early adoption permitted. As thel A&ldresses only the assessment of
impairment, adoption of ASU 2011-8 is not expedtetnpact the Company's financial position, resafteperations or cash flows.

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU 201%tatement of Comprehensive Incarfiée new statement gives companies the optiomesgmtin
net income and comprehensive income in one conimstatement of comprehensive income or in tworsé@aut consecutive statements.
Currently companies report other comprehensivemeand its components in stockholders' equity. 2BW1-5 is effective for fiscal years,
and interim periods within those years, beginnifigrdDecember 15, 2011, and will impact the finahstatement presentation of the
Company in the first quarter 2012. As the ASU
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addresses only disclosure requirements, adoptigsof 2011-5 is not expected to impact the Compdinescial position, results of
operations or cash flows.

In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU 201 F4dir Value Measurement and Disclosur&he new guidance requires additional disclostoes
Level 3 measurements including quantitative infdfaraabout the significant unobservable inputs usesktimating fair value, a discussion
of the sensitivity of the measurement to thesetmpand a description of the Company's valuatiatgss. ASU 2011-4 is effective for fiscal
years, and interim periods within those years, fr@gg after December 15, 2011. As the ASU addresskysdisclosure requiremen
adoption of ASU 2011-4 is not expected to impaet@ompany's financial position, results of operaior cash flows.

3. CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE
During the fiscal year ended December 31, 201& (bmpany did not change any of its existing actingrpolicies with the exception of the
following accounting principle, which was adoptettidecame effective with respect to the Companyamuary 2, 2011 .

Effective January 2, 2011 , the Company electezhtmge its accounting principle of valuing all isfinventories that used the LIFO method
to the FIFO method. As of the fiscal year endeti®®0inventories valued using the LIFO and FIFOhods represented approximately 11%
and 85% , respectively, of total inventories whike temaining inventory recorded using the averagémethod. The Company believed the
change was preferable because it (1) more closéibcted current acquisition cost and improvedrtfagching of revenue and expense, (2)
conformed 96% of the Company's method of invent@adyation to the FIFO method and (3) enhanced coatyility with industry peers. The
Company applied this change in accounting prindgipteospectively to all prior periods presentecehein accordance with FASB ASC Topic
250,Accounting Changes and Error Correction&s a result of the accounting change, retainexiregs as of January 2, 2010 and January 3,
2009 increased from $285.5 million to $294.2 miiland $271.3 million to $282.7 million , respechixeAs of January 2, 2011 , the
Company converted all LIFO inventory balancessraitcounting systems to FIFO inventory which effety eliminated its LIFO pools
prospectively.

As a result of the retrospective application o$tthange in accounting principle, certain finanstatement line items in the Company's

consolidated balance sheet as of January 1, 28id ifs consolidated statements of income and didased statements of cash flows for the
fiscal years ended January 1, 2011 and Januaiy1®, 2were adjusted as presented below:
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Consolidated Statements of Income

Year Ended January 1, 2011

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Cost of sales
Operating income
Income taxes
Net income
Net income attributable to Franklin Electric Cag.l
Income per share:
Basic
Diluted

Cost of sales
Operating income
Income taxes
Net income
Net income attributable to Franklin Electric Ca¢.l
Income per share:
Basic
Diluted

Consolidated Balance Sheet

As Originally Effect of
Reported As Adjusted Change
$ 483,49: $ 483,59 $ 10z
64,10: 63,99¢ (103)
15,10¢ 15,057 (49
39,97 39,91¢ (54)
38,96¢ 38,91« (59
$ 168 $ 168 $ —
$ 166 $ 168 $ (0.01)

Year Ended January 2, 2010

As Originally Effect of
Reported As Adjusted Change
$ 438,15. $ 442,43¢  $ 4,28¢

48,01t 43,73: (4,284

12,16¢ 10,62¢ (1,549

26,724 23,98: (2,747)

25,98¢ 23,24¢ (2,747)

$ 11 % 101 $ (0.12)

$ 112 % 1.0 $ (0.12)

Year Ended January 1, 2011

(In thousands)
Inventories

Deferred income taxes
Retained earnings

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

As Originally Effect of
Reported As Adjusted Change
$ 126,000 $ 140,23 $ 14,22¢
18,76: 13,18: (5,580
305,26( 313,90! 8,64¢

Year Ended January 1, 2011

(In thousands)

Net income

Changes in assets and liabilities:
Inventory
Income taxes

Net income

Changes in assets and liabilities:
Inventory
Income taxes

As Originally Effect of
Reported As Adjusted Change
$ 39,97: $ 39,91¢ $ (54)
13,41¢ 13,51¢ 103
(2,879 (2,929 (49
Year Ended January 2, 2010
As Originally Effect of
Reported As Adjusted Change

$ 26,72¢ $ 23,98: $ (2,74

43,88 48,16¢ 4,28¢
9,41¢ 7,872 (1,549)
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As a result of the conversion described aboverieessary to estimate the effect of the changedounting principle on the current period.
The estimated impact of this accounting changéerconsolidated statement of income as computeerwiBO for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2011 would be an increase in costle$ ®f $2.4 million , a decrease in operating mef $2.4 million, a decrease in incon
taxes of $0.6 million , a decrease in net incom$108 million , a decrease in net income attribleab Franklin Electric Co., Inc. of $1.8
million , and a decrease in both basic and dilinedme per share of $0.08 .

The estimated impact of this change to the conatddibalance sheet as computed under LIFO as @nilmr 31, 2011 would be a decrease
in inventories of $16.6 million , an increase ifeteed income taxes of $6.2 million , and a deaéasetained earnings of $10.4 million .

The estimated impact to the consolidated statenferash flows for the fiscal year ended DecemberR811 would be a reduction of cash
provided by net income of $1.8 million offset b$2.4 million source of cash from the reductionrimentory and a $0.6 million use of cash
from the reduction in income taxes. There woulchbémpact to net cash flows from operating adgeitin the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2011 .

4. ACQUISITIONS

In an agreement dated May 2, 2011 , between Fragldictric BV (a wholly owned subsidiary of the Goamy) and Impo Motor Pompa
Sanayi ve Ticaret A.S. ("Impo"), the Company acedi80 percendf the outstanding shares of Impo, net of debt medwplus working capite
adjustments, for approximately 40.0 million Turkisl ("TL"), $26.1 million at the then current eha@nge rate, subject to certain terms and
conditions.

Impo, located in Izmir, Turkey, is the leading sligpof groundwater pumping equipment in TurkeyeTlimpo acquisition, combined with t
Company's current presence in the region, provide£ompany with the leading position in the rapgilowing market for groundwater
pumping systems in Turkey and throughout the MidtHst. It also provides a low cost manufacturingetfar supplying the entire region.

The intangible assets of $15.3 million consist @ity of customer relationships, which will be ariped over 13 years, and trademarks. All
of the goodwill was recorded as part of the Watet&ns segment and is not expected to be dedufiibiax purposes.

The purchase agreement for Impo includes an edrprouision payable to the sellers if certain perfance criteria are achieved in any year
from 2011 to 2013 . Additional payments will noterd TL 10.0 million . As of the acquisition datee Company recorded contingent
consideration of TL 8.5 million ( $5.5 million ) @etermined by the income approach. The performeritia resulting in the earn-out
provision were not achieved for the fiscal yearash@011 . The contingent consideration of $5.0iomlhs of December 31, 2011 , remains
recorded in the "Other long-term liabilities" lirethe Company's consolidated balance sheet.
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The preliminary purchase price assigned to eaclbomidgntifiable asset and liability was as follows:

(In millions)
Assets:
Cash acquired $ 0.¢
Current assets 26.4
Property, plant, and equipment 11.5
Intangible assets 15.2
Goodwill 6.2
Other assets 2.8
Total assets 63.1
Contingent consideration (5.5
Liabilities (25.0
Total identifiable assets 32.¢
Noncontrolling interest (6.5)
Total purchase price $ 26.1

The fair value of the identifiable intangible assend property, plant, and equipment are provisiameounts as of fiscal year end 2011 ,
pending final valuations. The Company utilized ngeraent estimates and consultation with an indeperted-party valuation firm to assi
in the valuation.

The results of operations of Impo were includethin Company's consolidated statement of income) fte acquisition date through the year
ended December 31, 2011 . The difference betwealasales for the Company and proforma annuassatduding Impo as if it were
acquired at the beginning of the year was not natas a component of the Company's consolidatied $ar the year ended December 31,
2011 . Due to the immaterial nature of the acquoisjtthe Company has not included full year profarstatements of income for the
acquisition year and previous year.

In the third quarter of 2010 , the Company addeitstBueling Systems segment by acquiring all efdhtstanding shares of PetroTechnik
Limited and its subsidiaries (“Petrotechnik”), métdebt acquired, for approximately £8.4 millio$1,2.9 million at the then current exchange
rate, subject to certain terms and conditions. ddwesideration transferred to the sellers consistedsh.

Petrotechnik, located in Suffolk, United Kingdonistdbutes, sources, and designs lightweight aexifle underground pipe work systems
which are used in a variety of fuel transfer amdlans. Petrotechnik’systems provide the Company access to a worldwisismer base a
growth territories. Petrotechnik sales were notemakas a component of the Company's consolidsdtss for 2010 . Due to the immaterial
nature of the acquisition, the Company has notiged full year proforma statements of income ferdbquisition year and previous year.

The intangible assets of $5.1 million consist pritgaof trade names and customer relationshipd.oAthe goodwill was recorded as part of
the Fueling Systems segment and is not expectied teeductible for tax purposes. The results ofatmmns for the acquisition were included
in the Company’s consolidated statement of incdnoe) its acquisition date through the fiscal yeaded 2010 .
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The purchase price assigned to each major iddugfiasset and liability was as follows:

(In millions)

Assets:
Cash acquired $ 1.1
Current assets 11.C
Property, plant, and equipment 4.€
Intangible assets 5.1
Goodwill 3.5
Other assets 0.1

Total assets 25.4

Liabilities (12.5)

Total purchase price $ 12.¢

The fair value of the identifiable intangible assehd property, plant, and equipment are finalfdiscal year end 2010 in conjunction with
final valuations. The Company utilized managengstimates and consultation with an independerd-barty valuation firm to assist in the
valuation.

In the first quarter of 2009 , the Company addeitistdVater Systems segment by completing the aitguiof 75 percent of the outstanding
shares of Vertical S.p.A ("Vertical"). Verticalespalizes in the design, development and manufaattipressed and welded stainless steel
pumps and pump components. The Company has agjtolbal water systems distribution network and palrtner with Vertical to address
the growing worldwide demand for stainless stegbwpumps. Vertical sales were not material asnaponent of the Company’s
consolidated sales for 2009 . Due to the immdteature of the acquisition, the Company has ncluihed full year proforma statements of
income for the acquisition year and previous year.

The aggregate purchase price for the 75 perceng stfid/ertical was €15.0 million , $19.9 million e then current exchange rate, subject to
certain terms and conditionsThe fair value of the acquisition was estimatedpplying the income approach and a market apprwach
identify the total enterprise value and then thapprtionate acquisition percentage was appliece Cbmpany utilized management estimates
and consultation with an independent third-party&ton firm to assist in the valuation.

The aggregate purchase price was allocated toseetsaacquired based on the preliminary fair markdetes. Final market values were
determined within the measurement period. Thesxpearchase price over fair value of the net assgtsired, $7.4 million , was recorded as
goodwill, all of which is not deductible for tax guoses. A deferred tax adjustment of $4.2 millias included in goodwill during

2009 . The results of operations for the acquisitvere included in the Compasyconsolidated statement of income, from its adtiprisdate
through the fiscal year ended 2009 .
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The purchase price assigned to each major iddugfiasset and liability was as follows:

(In millions)
Assets:
Cash acquired $ 3.1
Current assets 10.:
Property, plant, and equipment 6.3
Intangible assets 11.€
Goodwill 7.4
Total assets 38.7
Liabilities (12.2)
Total identifiable net assets 26.t
Noncontrolling interest (6.€)
Total purchase price $ 19.¢

In an agreement dated December 19, 2011 , the Gompdeemed the 25 percent noncontrolling intesestertical, increasing the
Company's ownership to 100 percent , for approxéigad5.7 million , $7.4 million at the then curresxchange rate. The Company paid €5.4
million , $7.1 million at the then current excharrgée, in 2011 with the remaining purchase prickegaid in 2012 . The Company accrued
for the remaining purchase price, pending any finathase price adjustments. The recorded redemypdilbe in the "Redeemable
noncontrolling interest” line of the Company's agidated balance sheet prior to the transaction$vas million , which included previously
recorded fair value and currency translation adjesits. This addition to the Water Systems segmutitdr solidifies the Company's position
in the worldwide market for stainless steel watemps. The original 75 percent controlling intengas acquired in the first quarter of 2009 .
Due to the immaterial nature of the redemption,Gbenpany has not included full year proforma statets of income for the acquisition year
and previous year.

Transaction costs were expensed as incurred unheeguidance of FASB ASC Topic 8@\siness CombinationsTransaction costs includ
in selling, general, and administrative expenstaénCompany’s statement of income were $0.4 milji$0.6 million , and $0.3 milliofor the
fiscal years ended 2011, 2010, and 2009 , reispéct

5. REDEEMABLE NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS

In the second quarter of 2011 , the Company comglte acquisition of 80 percent of Impo. The 2@&@et noncontrolling interest was
recorded at fair value as of the acquisition da@ke noncontrolling interest holders have the optiich is embedded in the noncontrolling
interest, to require the Company to redeem theirasship interests by May 2, 2014, three years #ieepriginal agreement was signed. The
combination of a noncontrolling interest and a reggon feature resulted in a redeemable noncoimgpihterest.

The noncontrolling interest in Impo is redeemalblether than fair value as the redemption valugetermined based on a specified

formula. The noncontrolling interest becomes retge after the passage of time, and therefor€tmpany records the carrying amoun
the noncontrolling interest at the greater of (B initial carrying amount, increased or decredsedach noncontrolling interest's share of net
income or loss and its share of other comprehernsamme or loss and dividends (“carrying amount’{2) the redemption value which is
determined based on the greater of the redemgtonalue or the then-current specified earningdtiple. As of December 31, 2011 , the
Impo redeemable noncontrolling interest is recoraetthe carrying amount.

According to FASB ASC Topic 81@onsolidationand Emerging Issues Task Force ("EITF") Topic Ne@&)Classification and
Measurement of Redeemable Secur, redeemable noncontrolling interests issued irfdh@ of common securities, to the extent that the
noncontrolling interest holder has a contractugtitrio receive an amount upon share redemptiorigtuaher than the fair value of such
shares, then the noncontrolling interest holder imasubstance, received a dividend distributiat th different from other common
shareholders. Therefore, adjustments to the norabngy interest to reflect the redemption amoumt@ed be reflected in the computation of
earnings per share using the two-class method. tthddwo-class method, the Company has electe@ad as a dividend only the portion of
the periodic redemption value adjustment (if aimgf reflects a redemption value in excess of faiue. As the redemptive value was higher
than the carrying value, the
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Company adjusted the recorded amount of the reddemancontrolling interest for Vertical by $0.2Iloin for the fiscal year ended 20112
resulting adjustment to the earnings per share atatipn was necessary (see Note 14). No adjustmesnts necessary for Vertical in 2010 .
As the redeemable noncontrolling interest for Ingprecorded at the carrying amount, no adjustmeete necessary for fiscal year 2011 .

In the first quarter of 2009 , the Company compuldtee acquisition of 75 percent of Vertical. Theg&cent noncontrolling interest was
recorded at fair value as of the acquisition dabte noncontrolling interest was subsequently redekomn December 19, 2011 , increasing the
Company's ownership to 100 percent (see Note 4 rétlemption transaction reduced the "Redeemabieondtrolling interest" line with
offsetting adjustments in the "Accumulated othanpeehensive loss" line of the Company's consolilasdance sheet.

6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

FASB ASC Topic 825Financial Instruments provides a framework for measuring fair value emgenerally accepted accounting principles.
Fair value is defined as the exchange price thaildvioe received for an asset or paid to transfebdlity (an exit price) in the principal or

most advantageous market for the asset or lialilign orderly transaction between market participan the measurement date. Disclosures
about instruments measured at fair value were algzhand a fair value hierarchy which requires aiyeto maximize the use of observable
inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inpiisn measuring fair value was established. Thelatdndescribes three levels of inputs
that may be used to measure fair value:

Level 1 — Quoted prices for identical assets aagillties in active markets;

Level 2 — Quoted prices for similar assets andllt&@s in active markets; quoted prices for ideatior similar assets and liabilities in markets
that are not active; and model-derived valuationstich all significant inputs and significant valdrivers are observable in active markets;
and

Level 3 — Valuations derived from valuation techrgg in which one or more significant inputs or gigant value drivers are unobservable.

As of December 31, 2011, and January 1, 2011 adkets measured at fair value on a recurring hesis as follows:

Quoted Prices in

Active Markets for Significant Other Significant
Identical Assets Observable Inputs  Unobservable Inputs
(In millions) December 31, 2011 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Cash equivalents $ 171 $ 171 % — $ =
Derivative assets 0.1 — 0.1 —
$ 17z % 171 % 01 $ =

Quoted Prices in

Active Markets for Significant Other Significant
Identical Assets Observable Inputs  Unobservable Inputs
January 1, 2011 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Cash equivalents $ 20.C $ 20.C $ — % —

The Company designates the cash equivalents a$ Leag they are domestic Money Market funds gdiydoacked by Treasury Bills with
fund prices readily observable and internationghiguality, highly liquid, bank guaranteed depasitounts.

The Company's derivative assets consist of foreigrency forward contracts. The value is basedlseivable market inputs including
forward and spot exchange rates for currencies.cbh&acts are marked-to-market with the resulidmistment included in the "Other

current assets" line on the consolidated balaneetsind the "Foreign exchange income/(expensey'olinhe consolidated statement of
income. The contracts were initiated to favoraldgipjon the Company's foreign operations for fugpossible contingency payments.
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The following table summarizes information regagdihe Company’s non-financial assets and liabdlitireeasured at fair value on a non-
recurring basis:

Quoted Prices in

Active Markets for Significant Other Significant
Identical Assets Observable Inputs  Unobservable Inputs
(In millions) December 31, 2011 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Recognized Loss
Asset held for sale $ 13 $ — 3 — 1.2 $ 34
Impo contingent
consideration 5.C — — 5.C g
$ 6.3 $ — 3 —  $ 6.2 $ 4.1
Quoted Prices in
Active Markets for Significant Other Significant
Identical Assets Observable Inputs  Unobservable Inputs
January 1, 2011 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Recognized Loss
Asset held for sale $ 23 % — 3 — 23 % 2.4

During the second quarter of 2010 , the Compangrdsa the impairment as a restructuring expengeaperty, plant, and equipment
relating to the Siloam Springs facility which isssified as held for sale. The fair value was thaseappraised values and management
estimates less costs to sell. During the third tguaf 2011 , the Company agreed upon the termasl@tter of intent to sell its Siloam Springs
facility. As a result, the Company reduced theyiag amount of the held for sale asset to approtértze agreed upon sales price less co:
sell. The transaction is expected to close dutegfirst half of 2012 .

During the second quarter of 2011 , the Compangrded $5.5 million (TL 8.5 million ) of contingenbnsideration relating to the second
quarter 2011 acquisition of Impo. The fair valuebsf0 million (TL 9.7 million ) as of December 3011 , was based on the income
approach. The Company recognized the additionaktion charge in the "Interest expense" line ofdbesolidated statement of income. An
additional impact of $1.2 million was attributedftweign exchange translation. The contingent aersition is included in the "Other long-
term liabilities" line of the Company's consolidhtealance sheet.

7. OTHER ASSETS

The Company holds a 35 percent equity interestander Pump, Inc., which is accounted for usingeteity method and included in “Other
assets” on the consolidated balance sheet. Thgrmpamount of the investment is adjusted for@wmpany’s proportionate share of
earnings, losses, and dividends. The carryingevafithe investment was $11.0 million as of Decan®ie 2011 , and $8.8 million as of
January 1, 2011 . The Company’s proportionateesbBPioneer Pump, Inc. earnings, included in “©Otheome/(expense)” in the Compaay
statements of income, was $2.3 million , $1.0 wrillj and $0.1 million , for 2011 , 2010 , and 20@8spectively.

During the second quarter of 201the Company entered into a loan agreement wélpérent of a customer. The current maturity dtuitec

in "Receivables" and the long term portion is imed in "Other assets" on the Company's consolidadé&xhce sheet. The agreement provides
for interest on the loan at a variable market egerate with the customer to repay the loan pitexést in semannual installments throughc
the seven year term. The Company has a long &atianship with the customer and considers the fally collectible.

8. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The Company uses the acquisition method of acaogifir business combinations. Annual goodwill iinpeent testing and trade name
impairment testing is performed during the fourttader of each year; unless events or circumstandesate earlier impairment testing is
required. No impairment loss was recognized for1202010 , or 2009 .
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The carrying amounts of the Company’s intangibketsare as follows:

(In millions) 2011 2010
Gross Carrying Accumulated Gross Carrying Accumulated
Amount Amortization Amount Amortization
Amortized intangibles:
Patents $ 7.8 % (5.4 $ 7S $ (4.9)
Supply agreements 4.4 (4.9 4.4 (3.9
Technology 7.5 (2.7) 7.5 (2.2
Customer relationships 78.7 (17.3) 70.7% (13.7)
Software 1.2 — — —
Other 1.2 (1.9 11 (1.7
Total $ 100.¢ $ (30.7) $ 91¢ $ (25.7)
Unamortized intangibles:
Trade names 24.4 — 22.t —
Total intangibles $ 1252 % (30.9) % 1141 8 (25.7)

The weighted average number of years over which gaangible class is amortized is as follows:

Class Years
Patents 17
Supply agreements 6
Technology 15
Customer relationships 13-20
Software 5
Other 8

Amortization expense related to intangible assat$igcal years 2011 , 2010 , and 2009 , was $53llfbm, $4.6 million , and $5.1 million ,
respectively.

Amortization expense for each of the five succeggiars is projected as follows:

(In millions) 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

$ 56 $ 56 $ 58 % B & 55

The change in the carrying amount of goodwill byaiting segment for 2011 and 2010 , is as follows:

(In millions) 2011

Water Systems Fueling Systems Consolidated
Balance as of January 1, 2011 $ 107.C $ 58.2 $ 165.2
Acquisitions 6.2 — 6.2
Adjustments to prior year acquisitions — 0.7 0.7
Foreign currency translation 3.3 — 3.9
Balance as of December 31, 2011 $ 109§ 58< $ 168.¢
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(In millions) 2010

Water Systems Fueling Systems Consolidated
Balance as of January 2, 2010 $ 108.2 $ 53¢ §$ 161.¢
Acquisitions — 3.t 3.5
Adjustments to prior year acquisitions — 1.3 1.3
Foreign currency translation (1.9 — (1.9
$ 107.C $ 58.2 % 165.2

Balance as of January 1, 2011

The 2011 acquired goodwill in the Water Systemsreag related to the Company's acquisition of Ingee 2010 acquired goodwill in the
Fueling Systems segment related to the Companygisition of Petrotechnik.

The 2006 purchase agreement for Healy Systemsdedvor additional payments of 5 perceftertain Healy Systems product sales thrc
August 31, 2011 . Adjustments to prior year adtjoiss primarily include those contingency commititeeto Healy Systems, Inc. Payments
of $7.8 million were made in 2011 for accumulatadhed amounts under the purchase agreement.

9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
Defined Benefit Plans- As of December 31, 2011 , the Company maintathezk domestic pension plans and three Germangrepkins.
The Company used a December 31 measurement date$er plans.

Effective for 2012 the Company redesigned certain retirement pléarinfjs. The redesign was completed in order toeimse standardizatic

of retirement plans among U.S. salaried employedd@reduce the expected cash funding volatilityetirement plans, while at the same
time keeping in place a competitive retirement mifaring to attract and retain talent. The Compaalyieved this by freezing both the Basic
Pension Plan and the Cash Balance Plan as of Jahu2012 , with the exception of a certain limitegnber of Basic Pension Plan
participants who will still accrue benefits oveliraited sunset period. Also effective January 1120the Cash Balance Plan was closed (the
Basic Pension Plan was previously closed). As ofidey 1, 2012 , the Company instituted a new serlmsed contribution, supplemental to
the existing Company match for employees, intodisfined contribution retirement plan offering.

The following table sets forth aggregated informatielated to the Company’s pension benefits ahdrgiostretirement benefits, including
changes in the benefit obligations, changes in pimets, funded status, amounts recognized inathade sheet, amounts recognized in other
accumulated comprehensive income, and actuariairggsons that the Company considered in its deteation of benefit obligations and

plan costs:
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(In millions) Pension Benefits Other Benefits

2011 2010 2011 2010
Accumulated benefit obligation, end of year $ 1732 % 165.C $ 134  § 12
Change in benefit obligation:
Projected benefit obligation, beginning of year $ 171.¢ % 164.2 $ 125 $ 13.C
Service cost 3.5 2.6 0.1 0.1
Interest cost 8.7 8.6 0.€ 0.7
Plan amendments — — 1.2 —
Actuarial loss 9.8 7.€ 0.2 0.3
Settlements paid (0.6) — — —
Benefits paid (22.0 (11.¢) (1.2 1.3
Liability (gain)/loss due to curtailment** 4.3 0.€ — 0.3
Foreign currency exchange (0.9 (0.9 — —
Projected benefit obligation, end of year $ 176 $ 171.¢  $ 132 $ 125
Change in plan assets:
Fair value of assets, beginning of year $ 116.C $ 100.7 $ — 3 =
Actual return on plan assets 0.3 13.C — —
Company contributions 16.4 14.F 1.2 1.3
Employee contributions — — — —
Settlements paid (0.€) — — —
Benefits paid (12.0 (11.¢) 1.2 1.3
Foreign currency exchange (0.7 (0.9 — —
Plan assets, end of year $ 120.C % 116.C $ — 3 —
Funded status $ (56.€ $ (55.¢) $ 1349 $ (12.5)
Amounts recognized in balance sheet:
Noncurrent assets $ — % — $ — $ =
Deferred tax asset 26.¢ 22.C .3 0.¢
Current liabilities (0.7 0.3 (1.2) 1.2
Noncurrent liabilities (56.5) (55.5) (12.9) (11.9
Net pension liability, end of year $ (29.7) $ (33.9 ¢ (12.7) $ (11.€
Amount recognized in accumulated other
comprehensive income:
Net transition obligation $ — 3 — 3 01 $ 0.2
Prior service cost — 0.2 0.¢ 0.3
Net actuarial loss 44.¢ 36.¢ 1.2 1.C
Total recognized in accumulated other comprehensive
income $ 4.¢ $ 37.C $ 22 8 1.t

** These items for 2011 related primarily to thenefit plan redesign and the items for 2010 welated to the headcount reduction at the
Siloam Springs, Arkansas facility associated wlid Phase Il Global Manufacturing Alignment Program
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The following table sets forth other changes imasets and benefit obligation recognized in atherprehensive income for 2011 and
2010:

(In millions) Pension Benefits Other Benefits

2011 2010 2011 2010
Net actuarial (gain)/loss $ 16.1 $ 5€ $ 02 $ 0.1
Prior service cost/(credit) — — 1.2 —

Amortization of:

Net actuarial gain/(loss) (3.0 (3.0 — —
Prior service cost/(credit) (0.2 (0.2 (0.2) (0.7)
Transition (asset)/obligation — — (0.2 (0.3
Deferred tax asset (5.0) (0.9 (0.5 0.1
Total recognized in other comprehensive income $ 79 % 1€ ¢ 07 % (0.2

Total recognized in net periodic benefit cost atiteo

comprehensive income $ 128§ 62 $ 1€ $ 1.C
Assumptions used to determine domestic benefigabbns:
Pension Benefits Other Benefits
2011 2010 2011 2010
Discount rate 4.7%% 5.25% 4.5(% 5.0(%
3.00 -12.00¥ 3.00 -8.00% 3.00 -12.00% 3.00 -8.00%
Rate of increase in future compensation (Graded (Graded (Graded (Graded
Assumptions used to determine domestic periodiefiterost:
Pension Benefits Other Benefits
2011 2010 2011 2010
Discount rate 5.25% 5.75% 5.0(% 5.5(%
3.00 -12.00¥ 3.00 -8.00% 3.00 -12.00% 3.00 -8.00%
Rate of increase in future compensation (Graded (Graded (Graded (Graded
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 8.25% 8.5(% —% —%

The accumulated benefit obligation for the Comparwo tax qualified plans and German benefit penplans was $165.2 million and
$158.0 million for the years ended 2011 and 2010 .
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The following table sets forth the aggregated meiqulic benefit cost for all pension plans for 2Q2D10 , and 2009 :

(In millions) Pension Benefits Other Benefits
2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009

Service cost $ 35 $ 2¢ ¢ 31 $ 01 $ 01 $ 0.1
Interest cost 8.7 8.9 9.7 0.€ 0.7 0.8
Expected return on assets (20.9) (10.2) (20.9) — — —
Amortization of transition obligation — — — 0.1 0.2 0.2
Prior service cost 0.1 0.2 0.4 0.1 — 0.1
Loss 3.C 1.8 0.1 — — —
Net periodic benefit cost $ 45 $ 3€ $ 3C $ 0c $ 1C $ 1.2
Curtailment** 0.1 0.8 — — 0.2 —
Settlement cost — 0.3 — — — —
Total net periodic benefit cost $ 4€ $ 47 $ 3C § 0S¢ $ 12§ 12

** These items for 2011 related primarily to thenefit plan redesign and the items for 2010 welated to the headcount reduction at the
Siloam Springs, Arkansas facility associated wliid Phase Il Global Manufacturing Alignment Program

The estimated net actuarial (gain)/loss, prior isereost/(credit), and transition (asset)/obligatioat will be amortized from accumulated
other comprehensive income into net periodic béregt during the 2012 fiscal year are $1.9 milli&®.0 million , and $0.0 million ,
respectively, for the pension plans and $0.1 mmilli®0.3 million , and $0.2 million respectivelyy fall other benefits.

The Company has consulted with a third party inmesitt manager for the assets of the two funded dierifined benefit plans. The plan
assets are currently invested primarily in poolatdf, where each fund in turn is composed of mdturals that have at least daily net asset
valuations. Thus the Company’s funded domestiméefbenefit plan assets are invested in a “furfdreds” approach.

The Company’s Board has delegated oversight arthguoe to an appointed Employee Benefits Commifldée Committee has the tasks of
reviewing plan performance and asset allocatiosueng plan compliance with applicable laws; essdlihg plan policies, procedures, and
controls; monitoring expenses; and other relatéidites.

The plans’ investment policies and strategies faguthe ability to fund benefit obligations as tleyme due. Considerations include the
plans’ current funded level, plan design, beneditment assumptions, funding regulations, impagodéntially volatile business results on
the Company’s ability to make certain levels ofteifnutions, and interest rate and asset returntilibfeamong other considerations. The
Company currently attempts to maintain plan funskadus at approximately 80 percent or greater puntsio the Pension Protection Act of
2006 . Given the plan’s current funded statusQbmpany’s cash on hand, cash historically genefabed business operations, and cash
available under committed credit facilities, then@g@mny sees ample liquidity to achieve this goal.
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Risk management and continuous monitoring requirgsngre met through monthly investment portfolipais, quarterly Employee Benefits
Committee meetings, annual valuations, assetiliabtudies, and the annual assumption processsiog primarily on the return on asset
assumption and the discount rate assumption. Asoémber 31, 2011 , funds were invested in eqfikgd income, and other investments
as follows:

Equity Percentage
U.S. Large Cap 42%
World Equity ex-U.S. 15%
U.S. Small / Mid Cap 7%

Subtotal 64%

Fixed Income
U.S. Core Fixed

Income 17%

Long Duration Bond Fund 8%

High Yield Fixed

Income 3%

Emerging Markets

Debt 3%

Subtotal 31%

Other

Insurance

Contracts 4%

Cash Equivalents 1%
Total 10C%

The Company does not see any particular concemrafirisk within the plans, nor any plan assetd gose difficulties for fair value
assessment. The Company currently has no allocatipatentially illiquid or potentially difficultd value assets such as hedge funds, venture
capital, private equity, and real estate.

The Company works with actuaries and consultantsaking its determination of the asset rate ofrreassumption and also the discount
assumption.

Asset class assumptions are set using a combiratiempirical and forward-looking analysis for loteym rate of return on plan assets. A
variety of models are applied for filtering histal data and isolating the fundamental charackesisf asset classes. These models provide
empirical return estimates for each asset clasghdre then reviewed and combined with a qualitaéissessment of long-term relationships
between asset classes before a return estimataligéd. This provides an additional means farecting for the effect of unrealistic or
unsustainable short-term valuations or trendsnggtistead for return levels and behavior that ésetikely to prevail over long

periods. With that, the Company has assumed agcéag long-term rate of return on plan assets@ff percent for the 2012 net periodic
benefit cost. This is the result of stochastic elimg) showing the 50 percentile median return at or above 8.00 percent .

The Company uses the Aon Hewitt AA Above Medianveuno determine the discount rate. All cash fldigations under the plans are
matched to bonds in the Aon Hewitt universe ofitigtigh-quality, non-callable / non-putable corgter bonds with outliers removed. From
that matching exercise, a discount rate is detexdiin

The Company’s German pension plans are fundedsayamce contract policies whereby the insurancepapyguarantees a fixed minimum
return. Due to tax legislation, individual pensitmenefits can only be financed using direct inscegpolicies up to certain maximums. These
maximum amounts in respect of each member areip@duch an arrangement on a yearly basis.

The Company designated the domestic plan assésvat 1, as they are mutual funds and Company skgitkprices that are readily
available. The German plan assets are designateeh&l 2 inputs as the fair value of the insuracm@racts is measured by the reserve that
is supervised by the German Federal Financial Sigmey Authority.
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The fair values of the Company’s pension plan aseet2011 and 2010 by asset category are as fsilow

(In millions)
Equity
U.S. Large Cap
U.S. Small / Mid Cap
World Equity ex-U.S.
Stock
Franklin Electric Co., Inc.
Fixed Income
U.S. Core Fixed Income
Long Duration Bond
High Yield Fixed Income
Emerging Markets Debt
Other
Insurance Contracts
Cash and Equivalents

Total

(In millions)
Equity
U.S. Large Cap
U.S. Small / Mid Cap
World Equity ex-U.S.
Stock
Franklin Electric Co., Inc.
Fixed Income
U.S. Core Fixed Income
High Yield Fixed Income
Emerging Markets Debt
Other
Insurance Contracts
Cash and Equivalents

Total

Equity securities include Company stock of $0.0ionil ( 0.0 percent of total plan assets) and $1ilbam ( 1.3 percent of total plan assets) at

year enc2011 and 2010 , respectively.

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets for Significant Other

Significant
Unobservable

Identical Assets Observable Inputs Inputs
2011 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
$ 49.¢ % 49.¢ $ — $ —
8.5 8.t — —
17.¢ 17.¢ — —
20.7 20.7 — —
9.5 9.t — —
3.8 3.8 — —
3.€ 3.€ — —
5.3 — 5.2 —
14 1.4 — —
$ 120.C $ 1145 % 52 § —
Quoted Prices in Significant
Active Markets for Significant Other Unobservable
Identical Assets Observable Inputs Inputs
2010 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
$ 46.4 $ 464 $ — $ =
8.2 8.2 — —
18.C 18.C — —
iLfs 1.t — —
28.1 28.1 — —
3.7 3.7 — —
3.7 3.7 — —
5.€ — 5.€ —
0.8 0.8 — —
$ 116.C $ 1102 % 5€ $ —

One of the Company’s domestic pension plans camagscertain management employees. The Companyramdsnd this plan, and its
assets were zero in both 2011 and 2010 . The pojected benefit obligation and accumulated beonbfigation were $8.8 million an$i8.0
million , respectively, for 2011 , and $7.2 millioand $6.9 million , respectively, for 2010 .
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The Company estimates total contributions to th@plbf $7.9 million in 2012 .

The following benefit payments, which reflect extgecfuture service, as appropriate, are expectée fmaid:

Pension Other

(In millions) Benefits Benefits

2012 $ 10.€ $ 11
2013 13.2 11
2014 B.c 1.1
2015 13.2 1.C
2016 11.C 1.C
Years 2017 through 2021 57.€ 4.4

The Company’s other postretirement benefit planside health and life insurance benefits to dorsestiployees hired prior to 1992 . The
Company effectively capped its cost for those higndirough plan amendments made in 1992 , freeZmmgpany contributions for insurance
benefits at 1991 levels for current and future fieiagies with actuarially reduced benefits for doyges who retire before age 65 .

Defined Contribution Plans- The Company maintained a 401(k) Plan during 200ie Company previously maintained an EmployeelSto
Ownership Plan (ESOP) during 2010 and 2009 . Caution to the ESOP ceased beginning in 2010 . fAsugust 5, 2010 , the ESOP was
merged into the 401(k) Plan. All ESOP balancesviemsferred into the Franklin Electric CommoncBtmvestment within the 401(k)
Plan. The Company's cash contributions are akklctt participants' accounts based on investmentiehs.

The following table sets forth Company contribusdo the ESOP and 401(k) Plans:

(In millions) 2011 2010 2009
Company contributions to the plans $ 1¢ $ 1.7 $ 0.¢

10. ACCRUED EXPENSES
Accrued expenses consist of:

(In millions) 2011 2010
Salaries, wages, and commissions $ 271 % 25.4
Product warranty costs 9.¢ 9.4
Insurance 4.8 4.3
Employee benefits 3.8 6.2
Acquired entities additional purchase price — 7.C
Other 13.1 12.4
$ 58.71 $ 64.7
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11. INCOME TAXES
Income/(loss) before income taxes consisted of:

(In millions) 2011 2010 2009
As Adjusted As Adjusted
(Note 3) (Note 3)
Domestic $ 29z $ 432 % (3.9
Foreign 57.¢ 50.7 38.4
$ 87.1 $ 55.C $ 34.€

The income tax provision/(benefit) from continuiogerations consisted of the following:

(In millions) 2011 2010 2009
As Adjusted As Adjusted
(Note 3) (Note 3)
Current:
Federal $ 723 9 4.5 $ 2.8
Foreign 11.2 9.t 8.1
State 0.S 0.t 1.2
Total current 19.5 5.k 12.1
Deferred:
Federal 2.1 2.4 2.9
Foreign 1.8 5.C 1.1
State — 2.2 0.3
Total deferred $ 3¢ % 9€ $ 1.5
$ 234 $ 151 $ 10.€

A reconciliation of the tax provision for contingjiroperations at the U.S. statutory rate to thecéffe income tax expense rate as reported is
as follows:

2011 2010 2009
As Adjusted As Adjusted
(Note 3) (Note 3)

U.S. Federal statutory rate 35.C% 35.C% 35.C%
State income taxes, net of federal benefit 0.8 0.5 1.7
Foreign operations (8.5 (5.9 (5.9
R&D tax credits (0.5 (0.9 1.3
Uncertain tax position adjustments 0.3 (5.4 0.8
State deferred tax rate adjustments — (2.9 —
Valuation allowance on state deferred tax (0.2) 6.1 —
Other items 0.t 0.8 0.3

Effective tax rate 26.£% 27.4% 30.7%
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Significant components of the Company's deferreditsets and liabilities were as follows:

(In millions) 2011 2010
As Adjusted
(Note 3)
Deferred tax assets:
Accrued expenses and reserves $ 91 % 7.4
Compensation and employee benefits 33.8 29.€
Other items 11.7 11.5
Valuation allowance on state deferred tax (3.6) (3.4)
Total deferred tax assets 50.t 45.1
Deferred tax liabilities:
Accelerated depreciation on fixed assets 12.¢ 11.4
Amortization of intangibles 27.4 26.4
Other items 14.C 12.C
Total deferred tax liabilities 54.C 49.¢
Net deferred tax liabilities $ 85 $ (4.7)

The portions of current and non-current deferredatssets and liabilities were as follows:

(In millions) 2011 2010
As Adjusted (Note 3)
Deferred Tax Deferred Tax Deferred Tax Deferred Tax
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Current $ 14¢ 3 31 % 172 $ 4.C
Non-current 35.€ 50.¢ 27.¢ 45.¢
$ 50t $ 54.C $ 451 $ 49.¢

The effective tax rate continues to be lower thendtatutory rate primarily due to the indefingwestment of foreign earnings taxed at rates
below the U.S. statutory rate as well as recogmitibforeign tax credits. The Company has theitgiv indefinitely reinvest these foreign
earnings based on the earnings and cash projediatssother operations as well as cash on haddaanilable credit.

The operations realignment to foreign jurisdictiombich generates foreign tax benefits, also resitive domestic taxable income in some of
the Company’s U.S. state jurisdictions. The Congdamot likely to realize the benefit of a portiohthe recorded deferred tax asset relating
to state taxes in the foreseeable future. As saiehjuation allowance was recorded in 2010 of $@l4on . In 2011, the valuation allowanc
was adjusted by an increase of $0.2 million foreuir activity.

The Company identifies the accumulated earningthiiaffiliates that were not indefinitely reinvedtand computes the tax associated with
the subsequent repatriation. This computation demsithe impact of applicable withholding taxes tiredavailability of U.S. foreign tax
credits. The Company has calculated the repatmiati@ll the accumulated earnings that are notfiniely reinvested which resulted in a net
tax liability of $3.7 million recorded by the Compaas of December 31, 2011 .

The Company does not provide for deferred taxetherexcess of the financial reporting over theltasis in our investments in foreign
subsidiaries that are essentially permanent intidural hat excess is approximately $97.5 millioroa®ecember 31, 2011 . The
determination of the additional deferred taxes ti@ate not been provided is not practicable.

As of the beginning of fiscal year 2011 , the Comphad gross unrecognized tax benefits of $3.Ganill excluding accrued interest and
penalties. The unrecognized tax benefits increhgekD.2 million for state income tax liabilitieshile increasing $1.8 million for federal tax
liabilities based on evaluations made during 20"he Company had gross unrecognized tax
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benefits, excluding accrued interest and penaltie$5.6 million as of December 31, 2011 .

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amoaingross unrecognized tax benefits for 2011 , 20d4fd 2009 (excluding interest and
penalties) is as follows:

(In millions) 2011 2010 2009
Beginning balance $ 3€ $ 6.€ $ 6.8
Additions based on tax positions related to theentryear — 0.1 1.C
Additions for tax positions of prior years primgrikelated to

acquisitions 2.8 & 0.8
Reductions for tax positions of prior years (0.9 (3.6 (1.9
Settlements — — —
Ending balance $ 5 $ 3€ $ 6.8

If recognized, each annual effective tax rate wdnddaffected by the net unrecognized tax benefi® @ million , $3.2 million , and $5.7
million as of December 31, 2011 , January 1, 20d1d, January 2, 2010 , respectively.

Of the unrecognized tax benefits at December 311263.1 million are related to acquisitions fdrigh indemnification was provided for in
the respective purchase agreements. The stockame@greements related to these acquisitionsdertve Company rights to recover tax
liabilities related to pre-acquisition tax yearsrir the sellers. Other amounts are associateddwitiestic state tax issues, such as nexus, as
well as other federal and state uncertain tax jposit

The Company recognizes interest and penaltiesrktatunrecognized tax benefits in income tax egpethe impact of which is
immaterial. The Company has accrued interest andlpies as of December 31, 2011 , January 1, 28ad January 2, 2010 of
approximately $0.5 million , $0.4 million , and $0million , respectively.

The Company is subject to taxation in the Uniteté3t and various state and foreign jurisdictiongh\féw exceptions, as of December 31,
2011 , the Company is no longer subject to U.Serigd state, or foreign income tax examinationsaxyauthorities for years before 2008 .

It is reasonably possible that the amounts of wgeized tax benefits could change in the next teveiwnths as a result of an audit or due to
the expiration of a statute of limitation. Basedtla current audits in process and pending stattfigations, the payment of taxes as a result
could be up to $1.3 million .

12. DEBT

On December 14, 2006 , the Company entered inem@nded and restated unsecured, 60 -month $12idnmévolving credit agreement
(the “Agreement”). The Agreement provides for vagdorrowing rate options including interest rdiased on the London Interbank Offered
Rates (LIBOR) plus interest spreads keyed to thmamy'’s ratio of debt to earnings before interestes, depreciation, and amortization
(“EBITDA”"). On December 14, 2011 , the Company axed the Second Amended and Restated Credit Agrgemkich among other
things, extended the maturity of the Agreement ¢adnber 14, 2016 , and increased the commitmentirnio $150.0 million .

The Agreement contains certain financial covenauiits respect to borrowings, interest coverage, $oanadvances and investments. The
Company was in compliance with the covenants @&eaember 31, 2011 and January 1, 2011 . The Comathzero borrowings under the
Agreement at December 31, 2011 and January 1, 2011

On April 9, 2007 , the Company entered into the Adesl and Restated Note Purchase and Private Sipedéent (the "Prudential
Agreement") in the amount of $175.0 millioknder the Prudential Agreement, the Company gsees in an aggregate principal amour
$110.0 million on April 30, 2007 (the “B-1 Notesihd $40.0 million on September 7, 2007 (the “B-2€st). The B-1 and B-2 Notes bear a
coupon of 5.79 percent and have an average liferoyears with a final maturity in 2019 . On J@B; 2010 , the Company entered into
Amendment No. 3 to the Prudential Agreement togase its borrowing capacity by $25.0 million . December 14, 2011 , the Company
entered into Amendment No. 4 to the Second AmeadedRestated Note Purchase and Private Shelf Agretsimredefine the debt to
EBITDA ratio covenant in order to be equivalenttiat under the Agreement.
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As of December 31, 2011 , the Company has $50Ilbmiborrowing capacity available under the Prudgrtgreement. Principal
installments of $30.0 million are payable annuatiynmencing on April 30, 2015 and continuing to amduding April 30, 2019 , with any
unpaid balance due at maturity. The Prudential Agrent contains certain financial covenants witpeesto borrowings, interest coverage,
loans or advances and investments. The Companjnveasnpliance with the covenants as of DecembefB11 and January 1, 2011 .

The Company also has certain overdraft facilitieissaforeign subsidiaries, of which none were tanding at December 31, 2011 and
January 1, 2011 .

Debt consisted of the following:

(In millions) 2011 2010
Prudential Agreement - 5.79 percent $ 150.C $ 150.C
Capital leases 0.2 0.7
Foreign subsidiary debt 13.7 1.8
164.( 152.¢
Less current maturities (14.0 1.3
Long-term debt $ 150.C $ 151.2

During the second quarter, the Company acquired7®hilion of debt with the acquisition of the 8@rpent interest in Impo. In September
2011, Impo finalized a refinancing plan. As a tesfithis refinancing, Impo now has approximat88.5 million of credit available. As of
December 31, 2011 , Impo had debt outstanding prfeegimately $13.5 million , all of which is curremtaturities, with interest rates ranging
from 3 percent to 6 percent and maturity datesrenoli 2012 . The debt at year end was denominatedrio and U.S. dollar currencies and
was included in the foreign subsidiary debt linglaf above table.

The following debt payments are expected to be jpastcordance with the following schedule:

More than 5

(In millions) Total 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 years
Debt $ 163.7 $ 137 $ — 3 — 3 30.C % 30.C $ 90.C
Capital leases 0.2 0.3 — — — — —
$ 164.C $ 14.C $ — 3 — 3 30.C % 30.C $ 90.C

13. SHAREOWNERS' EQUITY
The Company has the authority to issue 65,000,8000, par value shares.

During 2011, 2010, and 2009 , pursuant to a steplkrchase program authorized by the Company'sdBofeDirectors, the Company
repurchased and retired the following amounts amdber of shares:

(In millions, except share amounts) 2011 2010 2009
Repurchases $ 106 S 6. $ —
Shares 250,00( 226,48 —

In 2011 , the Company retired 73,326 shares thet wezeived from employees as payment for the eseeprice of their stock options and
taxes owed upon the exercise of their stock optambrelease of their restricted awards. The Compiso retired 21,998 shares that had
been previously granted as stock awards to empdoyes were forfeited upon not meeting the requiesdriction criteria or termination. In
2010, the Company retired 12,255 shares that reesved from employees as payment for taxes owed the exercise of their stock
options and release of their restricted awardse Cbmpany also retired 1,485 shares that had besropsly granted as a stock award to
employees, but were forfeited upon termination2009 , the Company retired 14,403 shares that reesived from employees as payment
for taxes owed upon the release of their restriatedrds.
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In 2011, 2010, and 2009 , the Company recordet illion , $1.3 million , and $0.1 millionrespectively, as a reduction in tax liability ¢
an increase to shareowners’ equity as a resutbok ®ption exercises.

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) stetbiof the currency translation adjustment angémesion liability adjustment, $(2.2)
million and $(47.1) million , respectively, as o€Eember 31, 2011 , and $19.1 million and $(38.Hjani, respectively, at January 1, 2011 .

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE
The following table sets forth the computation asiz and diluted earnings per share:

(In millions, except per share amounts) 2011 2010 2009
As Adjusted As Adjusted
(Note 3) (Note 3)
Numerator:
Net income attributable to Franklin Electric Cag $ 63.1 $ 38¢ $ 23.2
Less: Undistributed earnings allocated to redeeenabh-
controlling interest 0.2 — —
$ 62.¢ $ 38¢ $ 23.2
Denominator:
Basic
Weighted average common shares 23.2 23.2 23.1
Diluted
Effect of dilutive securities:
Employee and director incentive stock options amdrds 0.5 & 0.2
Adjusted weighted average common shares 23.7 23.t 23.<
Basic earnings per share $ 271 $ 1.6¢ $ 1.01
Diluted earnings per share $ 265 % 168 $ 1.0C
Anti-dilutive stock options 0.3 0.8 0
Anti-dilutive stock options price range — low $ 43.4: % 288: $ 29.9t
Anti-dilutive stock options price range — high $ 48.81 $ 4887 $ 48.87

15. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

On April 24, 2009 , the Amended and Restated Fmaridectric Co., Inc. Stock Plan (the “Stock Plawas approved by the Company’s
shareholders. Under the Stock Plan, employeesiamémployee directors may be granted stock optiorsvards. The Stock Plan was
amended and restated to, among other things, setba number of shares available for issuance #@®0,000 to 2,200,000 shares as
follows:

Authorized Shares
Options 1,600,000
Awards 600,000

The Company currently issues new shares from itsneon stock balance to satisfy option exercises utideStock Plan and a similar prior
plan and stock awards under the Stock Plan.

The total share-based compensation expense reedgni2011 , 2010 , and 2009 was $4.0 million 3$dillion , and $5.0 million ,
respectively.

Stock Options

Under the above plans, the exercise price of eptihroequals the market price of the Company’s comistock on the date of grant and the
options expire ten years after the date of thetgr@ptions granted to employees vest at 20 ore26gmt a year and become fully vested and
exercisable after five years or four years, respelgt Subject to the terms of the plans, in
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general, the aggregate option price and any ajppéidax withholdings may be satisfied in cash seifjuivalent, by the plan participant’s
delivery of shares of the Compasy¢common stock having a fair market value at tme tof exercise equal to the aggregate option pckor
the applicable tax withholdings or, under the StBtkn, by having shares otherwise subject to theréwithheld by the Company or via cash-
less exercise through a broker-dealer.

The fair value of each option award is estimatedhendate of grant using the Black-Scholes opt@ination model with a single approach
and amortized using a straight-line attribution moetover the option’s vesting period. Options ¢gdrto retirement eligible employees are
immediately expensed. The Company uses histatatal to estimate the expected volatility of itxkidhe weighted average expected life,
the period of time options granted are expectdibtoutstanding, and its dividend yield. The rigefrates for periods within the contractual
life of the option are based on the U.S. Treasigidycurve in effect at the time of the grant.

The assumptions used for the Black-Scholes modégtermine the fair value of options granted duélf6gl , 2010 , and 2009, are as
follows:

2011 2010 2009
Risk-free interest rate 2.4% 1.61 -3.20% 0.70 -3.55%
Dividend yield 1.2%% 0.65 -1.72% 1.32 -2.04%
Weighted-average dividend yield 1.07% 0.95% 1.67%
Volatility factor 0.431 0.355 -0.39¢ 0.377 -0.54¢
Weighted-average volatility 0.43: 0.39¢ 0.39¢
Expected term 6.3 year 6.3 year 5.6 year
Forfeiture rate 3.5% 2.7(% 2.58%
A summary of the Company’s outstanding stock opéotivity and related information is as follows:
(Shares in thousands)
WeightedAverage Aggregate
Weighted-Average Remaining Intrinsic Value
Stock Options Shares Exercise Price  Contractual Term (000’s)
Outstanding at beginning of 2009 1,43¢ $ 31.1%
Granted 66E 17.3¢
Exercised (36) 18.4¢
Forfeited (89 28.2¢
Outstanding at beginning of 2010 1,97¢ $ 26.8¢
Granted 157 29.0:
Exercised (271) 18.6:
Forfeited (48) 35.64
Outstanding at beginning of 2011 1,817 $ 27.9¢
Granted 113 43.4:
Exercised (34¢€) 24.8¢
Forfeited (15) 37.1¢
Outstanding at end of period 1,56¢ $ 29.6¢ 5.54 year $ 22,57:
Expected to vest after applying forfeiture rate 1,55¢ % 29.61 5.52 year $ 22,34%
Vested and exercisable at end of period 1,02:  $ 31.3¢ 4.43 year $ 13,25¢
2011 2010 2009
Weighted average grant-date fair value of options $ 17.41 % 6.2¢ $ 5.64
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(In millions) 2011 2010 2009

Intrinsic value of options exercised $ 73 $ 3¢ % 0.4
Cash received from the exercise of options 8.€ 5.C 0.7
Fair value of shares vested 25 4.2 2.8
Tax benefit 2.1 1.2 0.1

There were no share-based liabilities paid durirgg2011 and 2010 fiscal years, respectively.

A summary of the Company’s non-vested stock opgictivity and related information is as follows:

Weighted-Average

Grant-

(Shares in thousands) Shares Date Fair Value
Non-vested at beginning of 2010 91C $ 23.62
Granted 157 29.0¢
Vested (342) 25.9¢
Forfeited (11) 23.4z
Non-vested at beginning of 2011 714 $ 23.4(
Granted 11z 43.4:
Vested (27¢) 25.3¢
Forfeited @) 24.1C

547 $ 26.5:

Non-vested at end of period

As of December 31, 2011 , there was $2.7 milliototdl unrecognized compensation cost related towested share-based compensation
arrangements granted under the plans related ¢ sefeiions. That cost is expected to be recognized a weighted-average period of 1.70
years.

Stock Awards:
Under the Stock Plan, non-employee directors angd@maes may be granted stock awards, includingtgmfirestricted shares of the

Company’s common stock.

Stock awards to non-employee directors are fulste@ when made. Stock awards to employees geneliffiivest over 4 years and may be
contingent on the attainment of certain performagmals. Dividends are paid to the recipient priovésting, except that dividends on
performance-based stock awards under the Stockvilldme paid only to the extent the performancalgare met. Stock awards granted to
retirement eligible employees were immediately esgeel in 2011 and 2010 .
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A summary of the Company’s restricted stock awatd/itly and related information is as follows:

Weighted-Average

Grant-
(Shares in thousands) Shares Date Fair Value
Non-vested at beginning of 2010 72 $ 39.8¢
Awarded 101 29.8¢
Vested (44) 41.61
Forfeited Q) 32.8¢
Non-vested at beginning of 2011 126 $ 31.8¢
Awarded 68 43.4(
Vested 3 38.4¢
Forfeited (22) 46.7¢
Non-vested at end of period 17z $ 34.4i

As of December 31, 2011 , there was $3.3 milliototdl unrecognized compensation cost related towested share-based compensation
arrangements granted under the Stock Plan relatstd¢k awards. That cost is expected to be rezedmover a weighted-average period of
2.31 years.

16. SEGMENT AND GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION

The Company’s business consists of the Water Systemd Fueling Systems reportable segments, basi@ gmincipal end market served.
The Company includes unallocated corporate exparsginter-company eliminations in an “Other” segirtbat together with the Water
Systems and Fueling Systems segments, represe@bthpany.

The Water Systems segment designs, manufactureseliaanotors, pumps, electronic controls and eelaarts and equipment primarily for
use in submersible water and other fluid systentieatjpns. The Fueling Systems segment designsufaatures and sells pumps, electronic
controls and related parts and equipment priméoilyise in submersible fueling system applicatidiie Fueling Systems segment integrates
and sells motors and electronic controls produgethé Water Systems segment.

The accounting policies of the Company's reportablgments are the same as those described in NSterimary of Significant Accounting
Policies). Performance is evaluated based on tks aad operating income of the segments and atyanf ratios to measure performance.
These results are not necessarily indicative ofélalts of operations that would have occurreddsadh segment been an independent, stand
alone entity during the periods presented.
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Financial information by reportable segment isad®ws:

(In millions)

Water Systems
Fueling Systems
Other

Consolidated

Water Systems
Fueling Systems
Other

Consolidated

Water Systems
Fueling Systems
Other

Consolidated

2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009
As Adjusted As Adjusted
(Note 3) (Note 3)
Net sales to external customers Operating income (loss)

$ 654.1 $ 583.1 % 504.¢ 105.: $ 84.C $ 55.¢
167.C 130t 121z 31.c 17.4 20.¢
— — — (43.2) (37.9 (33.])
$ 8211 $ 7136 % 626.( 934 $ 64.C $ 43.7

2011 2010 2011 2010 2009

As Adjusted
(Note 3)
Total assets Depreciation

$ 535.. $ 458.¢ 152 $ 16.z $ 17.€
222z 221.1 1.8 14 1.2
72.C 108.¢ 24 1.¢ 14
$ 829. $ 788.¢ 194 $ 195 § 20.2

2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009

Amortization Capital expenditures

$ 42 % 32 % 3.3 136 $ 108 $ 9l5
7 14 1.8 1.8 0.1 0.3
— — — 5.5 1.¢ 4.1
$ 59 § 4€ % 5.1 211 % 12¢ $ 13.¢

Cash is the major asset group in “Other” of totaleds.
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Financial information by geographic region is atofas:

(In millions) 2011 2010 2009 2011 2010

Net sales Long-lived assets
United States $ 371.C $ 319.¢ % 279.C $ 257.C $ 258.t
Foreign 450.1 393.¢ 347.C 172.C 150.¢
Consolidated $ 8211 $ 713¢ % 626.C $ 429.C $ 409.¢

No single customer accounted for more t10 percent of the Company’s consolidated salesaandunts receivable in 2011 , 2010, or 2009 .

17. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

In August 2010, the California Air Resources Bogi@ARB”) filed a civil complaint in the Los AngeleSuperior Court against the Company
and Franklin Fueling Systems, Inc. (a wholly-owsetsidiary of the Company). The complaint relétes third-party-supplied component
part of the Company's Healy 900 Series nozzle, visipart of the Company's Enhanced Vapor Recof/BlyR”) Systems installed in
California gasoline filling stations. This partdephragm, was the subject of a retrofit during first half of 2008. As the Company
previously reported, in October 2008 CARB issuétbtice of Violation to the Company alleging thag ttircumstances leading to the retrofit
program violated California statutes and regulaiohe Company and CARB worked to resolve theldigm matter without court action,
but were unable to reach agreement.

The claims in the complainimirror those that CARB presented to the ComparthiénNotice of Violation, and include claims thag th
Company negligently and intentionally sold nozzigh a modified diaphragm without required CARBtdfaration. The Company believes
that, throughout the period to which the complagtates, it acted in full cooperation with CARB dandhe best interests of CARB's vapor
emissions control program. Although the complageks penalties of at least $25.0 million , ihis Company's position that there is no
reasonable basis for penalties of this amount.

In addition, as the Company has previously repottesl Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Managetr@istrict (“SMAQMD”) issued a
Notice of Violation to the Company concerning thapthragm matter in March 2008. Discussions witit #gency about the circumstan
leading to the retrofit in its jurisdiction and thesolution of the agency's concerns did not réswdgreement, and in November 2010
SMAQMD filed a civil complaint in the Sacramentogguior Court, mirroring the claims brought by CARBh respect to the diaphragm
issue and also alleging violation of SMAQMD ruleSMAQMD's suit asks for at least $5.0 millionpenalties for the violations claimed in
jurisdiction.

In July 2010, the Company entered into a tollingeagnent with the South Coast Air Quality Managenizstrict (“SCAQMD”) and began
discussions with that agency about the circumsgtealing to the retrofit in its jurisdiction arftetresolution of the agency's

concerns. Those discussions did not result inesgeamt and in December 2010, SCAQMD filed a civihpdaint against the Company in Los
Angeles Superior Court. The complaint allegesatiohs of California statutes and regulations, ksinto the complaint filed by CARB, as
well as violation of SCAQMD rules, and seeks paeslof at least $12.5 million . The SCAQMD comptaioes not allege an intentional
violation of any statute, rule, or regulation. Thase has now been consolidated with the CARB icdses Angeles Superior Court.

The Company believes that there is no reasonakie fi the amount of penalties claimed in the SMA®and SCAQMD suits. The
Company has answered the SMAQMD and SCAQMD comigdaas well as the CARB complaint, denying liapilind asserting affirmative
defenses. Discovery in all these cases has comm@meckthe consolidated CARB and SCAQMD cases afestrial on May 7, 2012 .

Neither CARB's filing of its suit nor the air ditr suits have any effect on CARB's certificatidrttte Company's EVR System or any ot
products of the Company or its subsidiaries, andesnot interfere with continuing sales. CARB haser decertified the Company's EVR
System and does not propose to do so now.

The Company remains willing to discuss these matiad work toward resolving them. The Company capredict the ultimate outcome of
discussions to resolve these matters or any prowgedith respect to them. Penalties awardedeén@ARB or any air district proceedings or
payments resulting from a settlement of these msttkepending on the amount, could have a magffizdt on the Company's results of
operations.
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On July 31, 2009, Sta-Rite Industries, LLC and Rieninc. filed an action against the Company i thS. District Court for the Northern
District of Ohio, alleging breach of the partieB02 Settlement Agreement and tortious interferavite contract based on the Company's
pricing of submersible electric products and segkiamages in excess of $10.0 million for each daim The Company has denied liability,
is defending the case vigorously, and has filedunterclaim alleging Sta-Rite and Pentair's brezddhe same Settlement Agreement. Both
the Company and Sta-Rite/Pentair filed MotionsSammary Judgment. The judge granted the Comparotismand dismissed Sta-
Rite/Pentair's claims against it in September 20h&. judge also granted Sta-Rite/Pentair's motos@immary judgment and dismissed the
Company's counterclaim. Sta-Rite/Pentair is appgdlie dismissal of its claims. The Company capnedict the ultimate outcome of this
litigation, and any settlement or adjudicationti§tmatter, depending on the amount, could havatanmal effect on the Company's results of
operations.

The Company is defending various other claims agdllactions, including environmental matters, Wwhiave arisen in the ordinary cours:
business. In the opinion of management, based wardiknowledge of the facts and after discussiih wounsel, these claims and legal
actions can be successfully defended or resolvdtbut a material adverse effect on the Companganftial position, results of operations,
and net cash flows.

Total rent expense charged to operations for ojpgrégases including contingent rentals was $8I8amni, $7.9 million , and $7.6 million for
2011, 2010, and 2009 , respectively.

The future minimum rental payments for non-candelalperating leases as of December 31, 2011 sdi@laws:

(In millions) 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Future minimum rental payments $ 73 $ 4C % 36 $ 1C $ 1.C

Rental commitments subsequent to 2016 are noffisigni by year, but aggregated are $2.2 milliototal.

At December 31, 2011 , the Company had $23.6 milibcommitments primarily for the purchase of maehy and equipment, and building
expansions.

The changes in the carrying amount of the warrantyual, as recorded in "Accrued expenses" in hrafiany's consolidated balance sheets
for 2011 and 2010, are as follows:

(In millions) 2011 2010

Beginning balance $ 94 % 8.8
Accruals related to product warranties 8.4 7.8
Reductions for payments made (7.9 (7.2)
Ending balance $ 9¢ $ 94

18. RESTRUCTURING

Phase IlI of the Global Manufacturing RealignmerdgPam was substantially complete as of the er2D@0 . In 2011 the Company incurre
residual asset write-off and severance expensatedelo the completion of Phase IIl. In June 20the Company announced Phase IV of the
Global Manufacturing Realignment Program. The Camypaill transfer approximately 260,000 annual mauits of manufacturing activity
from the Oklahoma City, Oklahoma facility primartly the Linares, Mexico facility with a small panti of the transfer going to another
Oklahoma City based facility. Transfers relatethis Oklahoma City facility should be completed bg &nd of the first quarter 2012 . The
Company also expects to incur miscellaneous expeassociated with realignments and movements ofifaaturing and distribution

facilities in a variety of international locationiecluding the relocation to a new manufacturinglfty in Joinville, Brazil.

The Company has estimated the pretax charge fareRNato be between $2.6 million and $5.2 millicof which $1.2 million to $3.5 million
is for closing the Oklahoma City manufacturing fiagi Charges related to Phase IV began in thersgcpiarter of 2011 and will substantially
end in the fourth quarter 2012 and include severgpension curtailments, asset write-offs, andmgent relocation. Approximately 50.08%
60.0% of these charges will be non-cash.
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Costs incurred in the twelve months ended Dece®beP011 , included in the “Restructuring experiged’ of the Company's consolidated
statement of income, are as follows:

(In millions) Water Systems  Fueling Systems Other Consolidated
Severance and other employee assistance costs $ 03 $ 01 % — 3 0.4
Equipment relocations 0.3 — — 0.3
Asset write-off 0.9 — — 0.8
Total $ 1t $ 01 $ — $ 1€

Restructuring expenses of $5.3 million and $6.2ionilwere incurred in 2010 and 2009 , respectivplhimarily for the Water Systems
realignment.

As of December 31, 2011 and January 1, 2011 , thess$0.1 million and $0.2 million , respectivalyrestructuring reserves primarily for
severance.

19. SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)
Unaudited quarterly financial information for 20add 2010 , from continuing operations, is as foow

(In millions, except per share amounts)

Net Income
Attributable to Basic
Franklin Electric Earnings Per Diluted Earnings
Net Sales Gross Profit Net Income Co., Inc. Share Per Share
2011
1st quarter $ 1852 $ 60.E $ 10.¢ $ 10.7 $ 0.4 $ 0.4t
2nd quarter 224.1 77.2 22.C 21.7 0.9z 0.91
3rd quarter 224.2 73.7 19.2 19.2 0.82 0.8C
4th quarter 187.2 60.¢ 11. 11. 0.51 0.5C
$ 8211 $ 272 % 63.7 $ 63.1 $ 271 % 2.6t
2010 As Adjusted (Note 3)
1st quarter $ 160.C $ 50.6 $ 7€ % 7.2 8 03z $ 0.31
2nd quarter 190.4 64.€ 11.4 11.2 0.4¢ 0.47
3rd quarter 188.2 59.t 12.€ 12.: 0.5 0.52
4th quarter 175.C 55.8 8.3 8.1 0.3t 0.34
$ 713¢ % 230z $ 39.¢ $ 38¢ $ 1.6¢ $ 1.6t

Basic and diluted earnings per share amounts an@uied independently for each of the quarters ptese As a result, the sum of the
quarterly earnings per share amounts may not egeannual earnings per share amount.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Shareowners and Directors, Franklin Ele€wc, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of Franklin Electric Co., Inc. and subsigls (the "Company") as of
December 31, 2011 and January 1, 2011, and thedetansolidated statements of income, equity angpcehensive income, and cash flows
for each of the three years in the period endeceBer 31, 2011. Our audits also included the firdustatement schedule listed in the Index
at Iltem 15. These financial statements and findstagement schedule are the responsibility ofGhmpany's management. Our responsik

is to express an opinion on these financial statésnend financial statement schedule based onualitsa

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBioUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &amdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindmecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on flasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digids in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting ptesiused and significant estimates made by marnagfeas well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe thataodits provide a reasonable basis for our opinio

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statetag@resent fairly, in all material respects, timaricial position of Franklin Electric Co., Ir
and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2011 and Jafua0n11, and the results of their operationstaed cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2011, ifocmity with accounting principles generally acasgin the United States of Americ
Also, in our opinion, the financial statement salledwhen considered in relation to the basic claat®d financial statements taken as a
whole, presents fairly, in all material respedig, information set forth therein.

As discussed in Note 3 to the consolidated findrst&ements, the Company has elected to changeeitsod of accounting for all of its
inventories that used the last-in, first-out ("LIF@ethod to the first-in, first-out ("FIFO") metteffective January 2, 2011.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@/nited States), the Company's
internal control over financial reporting as of Betber 31, 2011, based on the criteria establighbdearnal Control-Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrise Treadway Commission, and our report datdatirary 29, 2012, expressed an
unqualified opinion on the Company's internal cohtwer financial reporting.

/SIDELOITTE & TOUCHE LLF

Chicago, lllinois
February 29, 2012
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISARGEEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

As of the end of the period covered by this refthie “Evaluation Date”), the Company carried oueaaluation, under the supervision and
with the participation of the Company’s managemeruding the Company’s Chief Executive Officeldathe Company’s Chief Financial
Officer, of the effectiveness of the design andrapen of the Company’s disclosure controls anctpdures pursuant to Exchange Act Rule
13a-15. Based upon that evaluation, the Comparlyisf&xecutive Officer and the Company’s Chief Fiaial Officer concluded that, as of
the Evaluation Date, the Company’s disclosure atsm@ind procedures were effective.

There have been no changes in the Company’s intesn&rol over financial reporting identified in moection with the evaluation required by
Rules 13at5 under the Exchange Act during the last fiscalrtpr that have materially affected, or are reaslyrigely to materially affect th
Company’s internal control over financial reporting

MANAGEMENT'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANC IAL REPORTING
System of Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and taiaimg an adequate system of internal control éwancial reporting of the Company.
This system is designed to provide reasonable asseregarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordanceasitbunting principles generally accepted in théddnStates of America.

The Company'’s internal control over financial repay includes those policies and procedures that(itain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and faglect the transactions and dispositions of thetassf the Company; (ii) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as ngctsparmit preparation of financial statementadcordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and exiperes$ of the Company are being made only in aced with authorizations of
management and directors of the Company; (iii) pl®@veasonable assurance regarding preventiometytidetection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Compangseds that could have a material effect on then@iiah statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting can provide only reaable assurance with respect to financial
statement preparation and may not prevent or detesstatements. Further, because of changes intmmy] effectiveness of internal contr
over financial reporting may vary over time.

Management conducted an evaluation of the effantise of the system of internal control over finahgeporting based on the framework in
Internal Contro-Integrated Frameworkthe “Framework”) issued by the Committee of SpaimgpOrganizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO). Management did not include ensttope of this evaluation Impo, which was acquiledng 2011 and whose financial
statements constitute 4.3 percent of net ass@tpebdcent of total assets, 2.1 percent of reverarabs(1.2) percent of net income attributabl
Franklin Electric Co., Inc. of the consolidateddiintial statement amounts as of and for the yeaaceBeécember 31, 2011 . Based on its
evaluation, management concluded that the Compaygtem of internal control over financial repogtinas effective as of December 31,
2011.

Our independent registered accounting firm hasidsun audit report on the effectiveness of the Gomis internal control over financial
reporting. This report appears on page 68.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Shareowners and Directors, Franklin Ele€wc, Inc.:

We have audited the internal control over finangéglorting of Franklin Electric Co., Inc. and sudaries (the "Company") as of December
31, 2011 based on criteria establishethternal Control - Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrike
Treadway Commission. As described in ManagemertmR on Internal Control over Financial Reportinggnagement excluded from its
assessment the internal control over financial mtémmpat Impo Motor Pompa Sanayi ve Ticaret A.3m{Jo”), which was acquired on May 2,
2011 and whose financial statements constitutgpdr8ent of net assets, 6.2 percent of total asddtpercent of revenues, and (1.2) perce
net income attributable to Franklin Electric Cog.lof the consolidated financial statement amoastsf and for the year ended Decembe
2011. Accordingly, our audit did not include théeimal control over financial reporting at Impo.eT@ompany’'s management is responsible
for these financial statements, for maintainingetifze internal control over financial reportingdafor its assessment of the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting, includedthe Management's Report on Internal Controf ¢\eancial Reporting. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on the Company's intaxoairol over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti8dé@/nited States). Those stande
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebtaasonable assurance about whether effectivenalteontrol over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our auditideld obtaining an understanding of internal cordvar financial reporting, assessing the
that a material weakness exists, testing and etnaduthe design and operating effectiveness ofiraiecontrol based on the assessed risk, anc
performing such other procedures as we considezeéssary in the circumstances. We believe thaawdit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial repogtis a process designed by, or under the supemvidi the company's principal executive
and principal financial officers, or persons penigrg similar functions, and effected by the compsufspard of directors, management, and
other personnel to provide reasonable assuraneediag the reliability of financial reporting anitet preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principles. A company's internaitoal over financial reporting includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertaihéartaintenance of records that, in reasonablel dataurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets afdh@pany; (2) provide reasonable assurance thatactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in adaace with generally accepted accounting princj@ad that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordanceawithorizations of management and directors of tmepany; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely deteafamauthorized acquisition, use, or dispositionhaf company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internaltcohover financial reporting, including the possti of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements duertor or fraud may not be prevented or detected timely basis. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the effectiveness of the internaltoarover financial reporting to future periods ateject to the risk that the controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditintigt the degree of compliance with the policeprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all maleespects, effective internal control over figal reporting as of December 31, 2011,
based on the criteria establishedriternal Control - Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrike
Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@/nited States), the consolidated
financial statements and financial statement sdeeakiof and for the year ended December 31, 20ttledCompany and our report dated
February 29, 2012 expressed an unqualified opiaiothose financial statements and financial statésehedule and included an explana
paragraph relating to the Company's change inéthad of accounting for all of its inventories thiaed the last-in, firstut ("LIFO") methoc
to the first-in, first-out ("FIFO") method effectvJanuary 2, 2011.

/SIDELOITTE & TOUCHE LLF

Chicago, lllinois
February 29, 2012
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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PART 1lI
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORAT E GOVERNANCE

The information concerning directors and directominees required by this Item 10 is set forth mm@ompany's Proxy Statement for the
Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on Mag04,2 , under the headings of "ELECTION OF DIRECT)RNd "INFORMATION
CONCERNING NOMINEES AND CONTINUING DIRECTORS," anslincorporated herein by reference.

The information concerning executive officers reqdiby this Item 10 is contained in Part | of theem 10-K under the heading of
"EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT," and is inporated herein by reference.

The information concerning Regulationk$4tem 405 disclosures of delinquent Form 3, 45 diters required by this Item 10 is set forthtlire
Company’s Proxy Statement for the Annual MeetinGbéreholders to be held on May 4, 2012 , undenhdlaeling of “SECTION 16(a)
BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE,” andiiscorporated herein by reference.

The information concerning the procedures for dhalders to recommend nominees to the Company’sdhafadirectors, the Audit
Committee of the board of directors, and the Comijsarnde of conduct and ethics required by thimlt® is set forth in the Company’s
Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Sharebiddo be held on May 4, 2012 under the headinfORMATION ABOUT THE
BOARD AND ITS COMMITTEES,” and is incorporated hardy reference.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by Item 11 is set fortlthe Company's Proxy Statement for the Annual Megetif Shareholders to be held on
May 4, 2012 , under the headings of “INFORMATION @BT THE BOARD AND ITS COMMITTEES,” “MANAGEMENT
ORGANIZATION AND COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT,” “OMPENSATION, DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS,”
“SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE,” “GRANT OF PLAN BASEDAWARDS TABLE,” “OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT
FISCAL YEAR-END TABLE,” “OPTION EXCERCISES AND STOK VESTED TABLE,” “PENSION BENEFITS TABLE,” “NON-
QUALIFIED DEFERRED COMPENSATION,” POTENTIAL PAYMENTS UPON TERMINATION OR CHANGE IN CHTROL OF THE
COMPANY,” and “DIRECTOR COMPENSATION,” and is inquorated herein by reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by Item 12 is set fortlthe Company's Proxy Statement for the Annual Megetif Shareholders to be held on
May 4, 2012 , under the headings of "SECURITY OWMNERP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS,” “SECURITY OWNEBRHIP OF
MANAGEMENT" and “SECURITIES AUTHORIZED FOR ISSUANCHENDER EQUITY COMPENSATION PLANS,and is incorporate
herein by reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by Item 13 is set fortlthe Company's Proxy Statement for the Annual Megetif Shareholders to be held on
May 4, 2012 , under the heading “INFORMATION ABOUHE BOARD AND ITS COMMITTEES,” and is incorporatdgrein by
reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by Item 14 is set fortlthie Company’s Proxy Statement for the Annual Megtif Shareholders to be held on
May 4, 2012 , under the heading “PROPOSAL 2: RATIKTION OF THE APPOINTMENT OF DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLRAS THE

COMPANY'’S INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGIRM FOR THE 2012 FISCAL YEAR,and is incorporated here
by reference.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SCHEDULE S

Form 10K Annual

Report
Documents filed as part of this report: (page)
1. Financial Statements - Franklin Electric Coc.In
Consolidated Statements of Income for the threesyeaded December 31, 2011 28
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,&td January 1, 2011 29
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the tyeaes ended December 31, 2011 31
Consolidated Statements of Equity for the threes/eaded December 31, 2011 33
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 35
2. Financial Statement Schedule - Franklin Elec®c, Inc.
Schedule Il - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts 72
Schedules other than those listed above are onfiiitdtie reason that they are not required or ateapplicable, or
the required information is disclosed elsewhertéfinancial statements and related notes.
3. Exhibits
Exhibits are set forth in the attached Exhibit xde 74

Management Contract, Compensatory Plan, or Arraegeim denoted by an asterisk (*).
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FRANKLIN ELECTRIC CO., INC. AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIIARIES
SCHEDULE Il - VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Balance at Additions Charged

Beginning of to Costs and Balance at End of

(In millions) Period Expenses Deductions (a) Other (b) Period
2011

Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 223 % 0.8 $ 01 % — 3 3.C

Allowance for deferred taxes 3.4 0.2 — — 3.€
2010

Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 25 % 0.2) $ 01 $ 01 $ 2.3

Allowance for deferred taxes — 3.4 — — 3.4
2009

Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 21 % 03 $ 02 % 02 $ 2.5

Allowance for deferred taxes — — — — _

(a) Charges for which allowances were created.
(b) Primarily related to acquisitions.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the reaiigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereuualy authorized.

FRANKLIN ELECTRIC CO., INC.
Registrant

Date: February 29, 2012 By /sl R. Scott Trulinbu
R. Scott Trumbull, Chairman and Chief ExeeoaiiDfficer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf of
the registrant and in the capacities indicated eorfrary 29, 2012 .

By /sl R. Scott Trumbull
R. Scott Trumbull
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ John J. Haines

John J. Haines

Vice President and Chief Financial Officer arati®tary
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

/sl Jerome D. Brady
Jerome D. Brady
Director

/s/ David T. Brown
David T. Brown
Director

/s/ David A. Roberts
David A. Roberts
Director

/sl Thomas R. VerHage
Thomas R. VerHage
Director

/s/ David M. Wathen
David M. Wathen
Director

/sl Thomas L. Young
Thomas L. Young
Director
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FRANKLIN ELECTRIC CO., INC.
EXHIBIT INDEX TO THE ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

Number  Description
3.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporationrainklin Electric Co., Inc. (incorporated by refecerio the Company's
Form 8-K filed on May 3, 2007)
3.2 By-Laws of Franklin Electric Co., Inc. as amendaty 25, 2008 (incorporated by reference to Exhsbit of the Company’s

Form 8-K filed on July 29, 2008)

10.1 Franklin Electric Co., Inc. Stock Option Plan (imgorated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the Conymform 10-K for the
fiscal year ended January 3, 2004)*

10.z Franklin Electric Co., Inc. Stock Plan (incorporhtey reference to the Company’s 2005 Proxy Stat¢feethe Annual
Meeting held on April 29, 2005, and included asiBiA to the Proxy Statement)*

10.2 Franklin Electric Co., Inc. Amended and RestataatisPlan (incorporated by reference to the Commaf909 Proxy
Statement for the Annual Meeting held on April 2809, and included as Exhibit A to the Proxy Staetyf

10.4 Franklin Electric Co., Inc. Non-employee Directobeferred Compensation Plan (incorporated by refareéa Exhibit 10.1 ¢
the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended oril Ap2006)*

10.t First Amendment to the Franklin Electric Co., INmnemployee Directors’ Deferred Compensation Pkted February 19,
2010 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5hef Company's Form 10-K for the fiscal year endetidry 1, 2011)*

10.€ Second Amendment to the Franklin Electric Co., Monemployee Directors' Deferred Compensation Bétad May 6, 201
(filed herewith)*

10.7 Amended and Restated Franklin Electric Co., Inasim Restoration Plan (incorporated by referendexhibit 10.4 of the
Company’s Form 10-K filed for the fiscal year endedhuary 3, 2009)*

10.¢ Franklin Electric Co., Inc. Deferred CompensatitenReffective December 12, 2008 (incorporated lgresce to Exhibit
10.2 of the Company’s Form 8-K filed on December2008)*

10.¢ Employment Agreement dated December 3, 2002 betttee@ompany and Scott Trumbull and amended onuaepi 8,
2009 and March 2, 2010 (incorporated by refereadexhibit 10.10 of the Company’s Form 10-K for fiszal year ended
December 28, 2002; Exhibit 10.6 of the Company’s&0-K for the fiscal year ended January 3, 2@0@t Exhibit 10.7 of
the Company’s Form 10-K for the fiscal year endaauary 3, 2010)*

10.1C Amended Employment Agreement dated December 2@ Bé@veen the Company and Gregg C. Sengstack agldsm on
July 25, 2008 and February 20, 2009 (incorporatereference to Exhibit 10.12 of the Company’s FAi®rK for the fiscal
year ended December 28, 2002; Exhibit 10.1 of then@any’s Form 8-K dated July 23, 2005; and ExHibif7 of the
Company’s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended Jan3a2009)*

10.11 Employment Agreement dated as of April 14, 2008veen the Company and John J. Haines and amendeebonary 18,
2009 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1thef Company’s Form 8-K dated April 7, 2008 and bihi0.8 of the
Company’s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended Jan3a2009)*

10.1z Form of Confidentiality and Non-Compete Agreemestideen the Company and R. Scott Trumbull, Greg§ebgstack,
Daniel J. Crose, Robert J. Stone, Thomas J. Stidglancey W. Davis and John J. Haines (incorporbyeckference to
Exhibit 10.15 of the Company’s Form 10-K for thectl year ended January 1, 2005)*

10.1: Form of Employment Security Agreement between tbmg@any and DelLancey W. Davis, Daniel J. Crose, Rabé&tone,
and Thomas J. Strupp (incorporated by referené&kibit 10.1 of the Company’s Form 8-K filed on @eaber 17, 2008)*

10.1¢ Executive Officer Annual Incentive Cash Bonus Pangi(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17hef Company’s Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended January 1, 2005)*

10.1%¢ Franklin Electric Co., Inc. Management IncentivarP(incorporated by reference to Exhibit A to @@mpany’s Proxy

Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholdeld Aeril 30, 2010)*
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10.1€¢ Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement formNDirector Employees (incorporated by reference thikix 10.1 of the
Company'’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended AprR@)5)*

10.17 Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement for&itor Employees (incorporated by reference to Ekh0.2 of the
Company'’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended AprR@)5)*

10.1¢ Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for Non-DiredEonployees (incorporated by reference to ExhibiQ®f the
Company’s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended Deoen81, 2005)*

10.1¢ Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for Director BEogpes (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1@2the Company’s
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 30520

10.2C Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for Non-EmploRéectors (incorporated by reference to Exhibit2Bof the
Company’s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended Deoen80, 2006)*

10.21 Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement forrNDirector Employees (incorporated by reference thikix 10.2 of the
Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Apr2@09)*

10.22 Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement for&itor Employees (incorporated by reference to likh.3 of the
Company'’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Apr2@09)*

10.2% Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for Non-Diredfonployees (incorporated by reference to Exhibié 1 the
Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended AprR2@Q9)*

10.2¢ $120,000,000 Amended and Restated Credit Agreedaet December 14, 2006, between the Company dvidrgen
Chase, as Administrative Agent (incorporated bgnexfice to Exhibit 2.04 of the Company’s Form 84Kdion December 21,
2006)

10.2¢ Amendment No. 1 to the $120,000,000 Amended anthResCredit Agreement, dated February 26, 2008ydsn the
Company and JPMorgan Chase, as Administrative Agecrporated by reference to Exhibit 10.20 of @@mpany’s Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended January 3, 2009)

10.2¢ Amendment No. 2 to the $120,000,000 Amended anthResCredit Agreement, dated February 26, 2008ydsn the
Company and JPMorgan Chase, as Administrative A@gecdrporated by reference to Exhibit 10.20 of @@mpany's Form
8-K filed on December 15, 2011)

10.27 Second Amended and Restated Note Purchase andeP3ivelf Agreement dated September 9, 2004 bettiee@ompany
and the Prudential Insurance Company of Americaathers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1@fithe Company’s
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended October 2, 2004)

10.2¢ Amendment and PruShelf Renewal and Extension, dgbeit!9, 2007, between the Company and Prudefimgirance
Company of America and others (incorporated byrezfee to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on May 3, 200

10.2¢ Amendment No. 2 to the Second Amended and RedtitsiPurchase and Private Shelf Agreement, datedikey 26,
2008, between the Company and the Prudential Insar@ompany of America and others (incorporatecegrence to
Exhibit 10.23 of the Company’s Form 10-K for thecfl year ended January 3, 2009)

10.3C Amendment No. 3 to Second Amended and RestatedMothase and Private Shelf Agreement, dated 21910
between the Company and Prudential Insurance Coymgfalimerica and others (incorporated by referelac€ompany’s
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended July, 3, 2010)

10.31 Amendment No. 4 to Second Amended and RestatedMothase and Private Shelf Agreement, dated 241210
between the Company and Prudential Insurance Comgfalimerica and others (incorporated by refereiacExhibit 10.1 of
the Company's Form 8-K filed on December 15, 2011)

18.1 Franklin Electric Co., Inc. and Subsidiaries Pralfdity Letter from Independent Registered Publaxdunting Firm
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 18.1 of th@rpany's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended April®,1)

21 Subsidiaries of the Registrant

23 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourking
31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant$ection 302 of the Sarbanes—Oxley Act of 2002
31.z Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant$ection 302 of the Sarbanes—Oxley Act of 2002

32.1 Chief Executive Officer Certification Pursuant #® W.S.C. Section 1350 As Adopted Pursuant to Se&@6 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
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EXHIBIT 10.6

SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE FRANKLIN ELECTRIC CO., INC.
NONEMPLOYEE DIRECTORS' DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

WHEREAS , Franklin Electric Co., Inc. (the “Companyf)aintains the Franklin Electric Co., Inc. Nonemg@eyDirectors' Deferre
Compensation Plan (the “Plan”) for its nonemplogigectors; and

WHEREAS , the Company has reserved the right to amend lde &hd now deems it appropriate to do so to comytli the
applicable rules of The Nasdaq Stock Market.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED , that the Plan is hereby amended, effective agof 1, 2011, by revising Section 9.2
the Plan to read as follows:

9.2 _Fair Market ValueFor all purposes of the Plan, the Fair Marketudadf a share of Common Stock as of a given
shall be the consolidated closing bid price fohare of Common Stock on The Nasdaq Stock Markehtpreceding trading day,
if there is no such consolidated closing bid pooethe trading day preceding the given date, threthe last previous day on whic
consolidated closing bid price was reported.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF , this Second Amendment has been duly executefitas &th day of May, 2011.

FRANKLIN ELECTRIC CO., INC.

By: /s/John J. Haines
John J. Haines
Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and &tary




FRANKLIN ELECTRIC CO., INC.

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT

State or Country

EXHIBIT 21

Percent of Voting

Subsidiary of Organization Stock Owned
Advanced Polymer Technology, Inc. Michigan 100
Cookson & Zinn (PTL) Limited United Kingdom 100
Coverco S.r.l. Italy 100
Denorco (Proprietary) Limited South Africa 100
EBW, Inc. Michigan 100
FE Latin America B.V. Netherlands 100
FELE C.V. Netherlands 100
Franklin Electric (Australia) Pty. Ltd. Australia 100
Franklin Electric (Botswana) Pty Ltd Botswana 100
Franklin Electric B.V. Netherlands 100
Franklin Electric Canada, Inc. Canada 100
Franklin Electric (Chile) Ltda Chile 100
Franklin Electric Europa GmbH Germany 100
Franklin Electric Germany Holding GmbH Germany 100
Franklin Electric Holding B.V. Netherlands 100
Franklin Electric Industria de Motobombus SA Brazil 100
Franklin Electric International, Inc. Delaware 100
Franklin Electric International Indiana LLC Indiana 100
Franklin Electric Manufacturing LLC Indiana 100
Franklin Electric Products (Proprietary) Ltd. South Africa 100
Franklin Electric Properties (Proprietary) Ltd. South Africa 100
Franklin Electric Sales LLC Indiana 100
Franklin Electric (SEA) Pty. Ltd. Singapore 100
Franklin Electric (South Africa) Pty. Ltd. South Africa 100
Franklin Electric spol s.r.o. Czech Republic 100
Franklin Electric Subsidiaries, LLC Indiana 100
Franklin Electric (Suzhou) Co., Ltd. China 100
Franklin Electric Trading (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. China 100
Franklin Fueling Sistemas de Combustiveis Ltda Brazil 100
Franklin Fueling Systems (Beijing) Trading Compautg. China 100
Franklin Fueling Systems France SARL France 100
Franklin Fueling Systems, GmbH Germany 100
Franklin Fueling Systems, Inc. Indiana 100
Franklin Fueling Systems Ltd. United Kingdom 100
Impo Motor Pompa Sanayi ve Ticaret A.S. Turkey 80
Intelligent Controls, Inc. Maine 100
Little Giant Pump Company LLC Oklahoma 100
Motores Electricos Sumergibles De Mexico S. de R.L. Mexico 100
Motores Franklin S.A. de C.V. Mexico 100
Motori Sommersi Riavvolgibili S.r.l. Italy 75




PetroTechnik Inc.
PetroTechnik India Private Limited
Pump Brands Pty Ltd

Servicios de MESMEX de SRL
Vertical S.p.A.

Delaware
India
South Africa
Mexico
Italy

100
100
100
100
100



EXHIBIT 23
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference ini®egion Statements (file numbers 333-01957, 38359, 333-59771, 333-34992, 333-
34994, 333-34996, 333-111370, and 333-124845) om %8 of our reports dated February 29, 2012irgJdb the consolidated financial
statements (which report expresses an unqualifi@dan and includes an explanatory paragraph rejat the Company's change in its
method of accounting for all of its inventoriesttbaed the last-in, first-out ("LIFO") method teetfirst-in, firstout ("FIFO") method effectiv
January 2, 2011) and financial statement schedufeamklin Electric Co., Inc. and subsidiaries, dhe effectiveness of Franklin Electric Co.,
Inc. and subsidiaries' internal control over finahceporting, appearing in this Annual Report anrf 10-K of Franklin Electric Co., Inc. and
subsidiaries for the year ended December 31, 2011.

/SIDELOITTE & TOUCHE LLF
Chicago, lllinois
February 29, 2012



EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANESXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, R. Scott Trumbull, certify that:

1.

2.

5.

Date:

| have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 16fkcranklin Electric Co., Inc., for the year engliDbecember 31, 2011

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntets.under which such statements were made, nigamisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamtd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of Franklin Electric Co., las.of, and for, the periods presented in
this report;

Franklin Electric Co., Inc.'s other certifyin§ficer and | are responsible for establishing arantaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a}Hnd 15d-15(e)) and internal control over firiaheeporting (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) fomkia Electric Co., Inc. and we have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedarecaused such disclosure controls and procedotee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatineg to Franklin Electric Co., Inc., includingitonsolidated subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entitiestigularly during the period in which this rep@tbeing prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over finanaiglarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting princjples

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of Franklin Elea@o., Inc.'s disclosure controls and proceduréspaesented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disesantrols and procedures, as of end of the peowdred by this report
based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any changes in FrankliecEic Co., Inc.'s internal control over finanai@porting that occurred duril
Franklin Electric Co., Inc.'s most recent fiscahger (the registrant’s fourth quarter in the cafsan annual report) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to srélly affect, the registrant’s internal contrafes financial reporting; and

Franklin Electric Co., Inc.'s other certifyiofficer and | have disclosed, based on our mo&eevaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the Franklin Electric Ctng.'s auditors and the audit committee of Frankliectric Co., Inc.'s board of directo

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contra¢ofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Fliarilectric Co., Inc.'s ability to record, processmmarize and report
financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that inneagvmanagement or other employees who have a santifiole in Franklin
Electric Co., Inc.'s internal control over finarai@porting.

February 29, 2012

/s/ R. Scott Trumbull

R. Scott Trumbull

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Franklin Electric Co., Inc.




EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANESXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, John J. Haines, certify that:

1.

2.

5.

Date:

| have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10fkcranklin Electric Co., Inc., for the year englibecember 31, 201;1

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsunder which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememts other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of Franklin Electric Co., las.of, and for, the periods presented in
this report;

Franklin Electric Co., Inc.'s other certifyinfficer and | are responsible for establishing arantaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13e}Hhd 15d-15(e)) and internal control over finaheporting (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) fomida Electric Co., Inc. and we have:

a.

Designed such disclosure controls and procsdareaused such disclosure controls and procedoifge designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to Franklin Electric Co., Inc., includingitonsolidated subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entitiestigularly during the period in which this repartbeing prepared;

Designed such internal control over finanaigdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assarsegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of Franklin EledBo., Inc.'s disclosure controls and procedurespaesented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discisantrols and procedures, as of end of the pexdoedred by this report
based on such evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in FranKliectric Co., Inc.'s internal control over finaglaieporting that occurred during
Franklin Electric Co., Inc.'s most recent fiscahder (the registrant’s fourth quarter in the casan annual report) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to erélly affect, Franklin Electric Co., Inc.'s intex control over financial
reporting; and

Franklin Electric Co., Inc.'s other certifyiofficer and | have disclosed, based on our mo&meevaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to Franklin Electric Co., Ilscauditors and the audit committee of FranklincEle Co., Inc.'s board of directors:

a.

All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contratiofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect FranKiactric Co., Inc.'s ability to record, procesgnsoarize and report financial
information; and

Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedymanagement or other employees who have a sigmiifiole in Franklin
Electric Co., Inc.'s internal control over finarai@porting.

February 29, 2012

/s/ John J. Haines

John J. Haines
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer areti®@tary
Franklin Electric Co., Inc.



EXHIBIT 32.1

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TGB1U.S.C. SECTION 1350 AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECNIO
906 OF THE SARBANESDXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Franklire&ric Co., Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K ftietyear ending December 31,
2011, as filed with the Securities and Exchangm@gsion on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, RotB Trumbull, Chairman and Chief

Executive Officer of the Company, certify to my kvledge, pursuant to section 906 of the SarbanesyOxtt of 2002 (18 U.S.C. Section
1350), that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefiction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoi 1934; an

2. The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of operations of
the Company.

Date: February 29, 2012

/sl R. Scott Trumbull

R. Scott Trumbull

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Franklin Electric Co., Inc.




EXHIBIT 32.2

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO8U.S.C. SECTION 1350 AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECWIO
906 OF THE SARBANESDXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Franklire&ric Co., Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K ftietyear ending December 31,
2011, as filed with the Securities and Exchangm@ésion on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, JdhHlaines, Vice President and Chief

Financial Officer and Secretary of the Companytifseto my knowledge, pursuant to section 906 @& 8arbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (18
U.S.C. Section 1350), that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefiction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoi 1934; an

2. The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of operations of
the Company.

Date: February 29, 2012

/s/ John J. Haines
John J. Haines

Vice President and Chief Financial Officer arati®tary
Franklin Electric Co., Inc.




EXHIBIT 99.1
ADDITIONAL EXHIBITS

ForwardLooking Statements

Written and oral statements provided by the Comgeny time to time, including in the Company's aahweport to shareholders and its
annual report on Form 10-K and other filings unither Securities Exchange Act of 1934, may contartageforward-looking information,
such as statements about the Company's financidd,gacquisition strategies, financial expectatioefuding anticipated revenue or expense
levels, business prospects, market positioningjymwbdevelopment, manufacturing re-alignment, edpixpenditures, tax benefits and
expenses, and the effect of contingencies or clsingaccounting policies. Forward-looking staterseare typically identified by words or
phrases such as “believe,” “expect,” “anticipaténtend,” “estimate,” “may increase,” “may fluctugt “plan,” “goal,” “target,” “strategy,”

and similar expressions or future or conditionabgesuch as “may,” “will,” “should,” “would,” andcould.” While the Company believes tt
the assumptions underlying such forward-lookingesteents are reasonable based on present conditiowsyd-looking statements made by
the Company involve risks and uncertainties anchateyuarantees of future performance. Actual tesuhy differ materially from those in
the Company's written or oral forward-looking staémts as a result of various factors, including,nmi limited to, the following:

” o ” ” o« ”ou ” o ” o ”

. The Company's success in its ongoing evaluaimhimplementation of its business strategies,a@aslheits success in managing the
expense and integration, valuation and other $kis acquisition strategy and divestitures.

. Continued or increased competitive pressures ffexttasales volume, pricing and profitabil
. Increased competition due to industry consolidationew entrants into the Company's existing mat
. The strength of the recovery and future hedlthe® U.S. and international economies and othenewic factors that directly or

indirectly affect the demand for the Company's piats, including the effect of economic conditiomshmusing starts in the United
States and on the availability and terms of finagci

. Increases in the cost of raw material, compmether materials, transportation or other sesagkich the Company is unable to
pass on to customers or which impact demand fo€tirapany's products.

. The effects of and changes in, trade, monetadyfiacal policies, laws and regulations and o#wetivities of governments, agencies
and similar organizations across the many coundnekregions where the Company manufacturers lsriseproducts, including
trade restrictions, inflation, currency fluctuatspimmport and other charges or taxes, nationatimatand unstable governments.

. The Company's success in implementing its strabéggncentrating production in low cost locatic

. The Company's ability to anticipate changingteoer requirements, fund and accomplish produaivation, improve processes,
and attract and retain capable staff in order & déth increasing volume and complexity in its guats.

. Difficulties or delays in the development, prodoati testing and marketing of products, includirfgilure to ship new products wh
anticipated, failure of customers to accept thesdyrcts when planned, any defects in productsfailire of manufacturing
economies to develop when planned.

. The costs and other effects of administratiisg| or criminal proceedings, settlements and irigegions, claims, developments or
assertions by or against the Company, includingéhrelating to intellectual property rights anefises, alleged defects in products
and non-compliance with governmental regulations.

. The introduction of alternative products or gawaental and regulatory actions that favor altémeamnethods of serving the same
function as the Company's products, such as tlemsixin of municipal water systems.

. The effect of environmental legislation and regolabn the Company's products and s.

. Company's success in reducing or controlling grawtgelling, general and administrative exper




. The Company's ability to manage the life cycletefproducts, reduce product costs and other castinarease productivit

. Events such as fires, floods, or other natuisdsters and weather conditions impacting the Cowlpability to produce products or
the demand for its products.

. A prolonged disruption of scheduled deliveriesi suppliers when alternative sources of raw rmetand components are not
available.

. Labor strikes or work stoppages by employees ofiiapany, its customers, suppliers, or freight @uotors or other provide

. The adoption of new, or changes in, accountingcpgsiand practice

Some of these and other risks and uncertaintiésitag affect future results are discussed in metaiblin “Item 1A - Risk Factors,”Item 7A
- Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures Aboutrkéd Risk,” and Note 17, “Contingencies and Comreittis” included in Item 8 of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K. All forward-looking steanents included herein are based upon informgtiesently available. The Company
does not assume any obligation to update any faklzarking information, except as required by law.



